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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
(A subsidiary of NTPC Limited)
CIN: U40102DL2007GO0I170661
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, CORE-7, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional
Area, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi-110 003
Tel. no.: 011-24387789 Fax: 011-24360241
Email: amit1106.acs@gmail.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 14" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of
BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED will be held on THURSDAY, 23R° SEPTEMBER
2021 AT 3:00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT NTPC BHAWAN,
CORE-7, SCOPE COMPLEX, 7, INSTITUTIONAL AREA, LODI ROAD, NEW DELHI-110003 to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31t March 2021, the reports of the Board of Directors,
Independent Auditors’ Report and the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India thereon and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“Resolved that the audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2021 and reports of the Board of Directors,
Independent Auditors’ Report and the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India thereon be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2021-22
and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to fix an
appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company as appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the financial year 2021-22
after taking into consideration the increase in volume of work and prevailing
inflation.”

3. To confirm payment of interim dividend and to declare final dividend for the
financial year 2020-21.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Rajesh Kumar Jain (DIN: 08180329), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To appoint Shri Praveen Saxena (DIN: 07944144), as Director of the Company and
in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder,
Shri Praveen Saxena (DIN: 07944144), who was appointed as an Additional
Director by the Board of Directors on 5.2.2021 to hold office upto the date of
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from the
candidate under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his
candidature as the Chairman of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as
Chairman of the Company and he shall be liable to retire by rotation”.

6. To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors paid for the financial year 2020-
21, to authorize the Board to fix the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for FY
2021-22 and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of section 148, other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to
Cost Auditor(s) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to
conduct the audit of cost records of the various units of the Company for the
Financial Year 2020-21, amounting to 50,000/- plus applicable taxes and out
of pocket expenses etc. be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

Further resolved that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to fix
an appropriate remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company in terms of the
provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2021-22
after taking into consideration the increase in volume of work and prevailing
inflation.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Vishal Garg)
Company Secretary
Regd. Office:
NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area
Lodhi Road, New Delhi— 110003
CIN: U40102DL2007G0I170661
Dated: 23.9.2021
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Notes:

1. The relevant explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, in respect of the Special Businesses, as set out above is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE,
THE PROXY FORM DULY COMPLETED SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE
SCHEDULED TIME OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. BLANK PROXY FORM IS
ENCLOSED.

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 105 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, A
PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE
THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON
SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. PROXIES
SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF LIMITED COMPANIES, SOCIETIES, ETC. MUST BE
SUPPORTED BY AN APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION / AUTHORITY, AS APPLICABLE.

3. Every member entitled to vote at a meeting of the company or on any resolution to
be moved thereat, shall be entitled during the period beginning twenty four hours
before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the
conclusion of the meeting, to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during the
business hours of the company, provided not less than three days’ notice in writing of
the intention to inspect is given to the company.

4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the
meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

5. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the Special Businesses, as set out above, is annexed herewith.

6. Brief resume of the Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment at Annual
General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

7. Pursuantto Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors of a Government
Company are to be appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG)
and in terms of Section 142 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, their remuneration has
to be fixed by the Company in the Annual General Meeting or in such manner as the
Company may in General Meeting determine.

The Members in the AGM held on 22.9.2020 had authorized the Board of Directors to fix
the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2020-21.
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

The Board of Directors, in its Meeting held on 14.6.2020, had approved the payment of
Rs 1,45,000/- plus applicable GST and out-of-pocket expenses based on actuals for the
statutory audit for the period starting from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021.

The Members may authorise the Board to fix up an appropriate remuneration of
Statutory Auditors appointed by C&AG for the year 2021-22 after taking into
consideration the volume of work and prevailing inflation.

7. None of the Directors of the Company is in any way related with each other.

8. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and explanatory statements are
open for inspection at the registered office of the Company on all working days, except
Saturdays and Sunday, between 11.00 A.M. to 3.00 P.M. prior to the scheduled time of
Annual General Meeting.

9. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, Company may give notice etc. through electronic mode
i.e. by e-mail as a text or as an attachment to e-mail or as a notification providing electronic
link. The Notice of the General Meeting etc. is being sent by electronic mode to all the
Members, whose email addresses are available with the Company, unless any Member
has requested for a physical copy of the same.

10. To support “ Green Initiative” of MCA, GOl Members who have not yet registered their e-
mail id or who want to change their e-mail id are requested to approach their respective
DP (for electronic holding) or Company (for physical holding), so as to receive all
communications electronically including annual report, notices, circulars, etc. sent by the
Company from time to time.

11. Specific particulars of the Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment, as required
under clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting is annexed hereto and
forms part of the Notice.

DIVIDEND

12. The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 5.3.2021, had declared an interim dividend
of Rs 1,20,00,00,000/- @ 5 % of the paid-up equity share capital of the company out of the
profits of the Company for the period upto Dec’2020. Further, Board of Directors, in its
Meeting held on June 14, 2021 has recommended a final dividend of Rs. 20,00,00000/- @
0.83% of the paid-up equity share capital of the company.

13. Final dividend, if approved at the AGM shall be paid with a stipulated time and subject to
deduction of tax, if any, as provided in the relevant section of Companies Act, 2013 and
In terms of the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ("the Act") as amended by the
Finance Act, 2020.

14. Route map for venue of the meeting is enclosed.
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Annexure to the Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 5

Shri Praveen Saxena (DIN: 07944144), Executive Director, NTPC was appointed as Additional
Director on the Board of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited by the Board of Directors on
5.2.2021 pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per nomination
received from NTPC Limited under Article 110 of the Articles of Association.

His brief resume, inter- alia, giving nature of expertise in specific functional area, shareholding in
the Company, other Directorship, Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees and other
particulars are enclosed with this notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except
Shri Praveen Saxena is, in any way, interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval.
ITEM NO. 6

The Board, in its Meeting held on 22" September 2020, had appointed M/s Niran & Co., Cost
Accountants, Bhubaneshwar, Odisha as the Cost Accountants of BRBCL for the Financial Year
2020-21 at a remuneration of X 50,000/- and reimbursement of out-of- pocket expenses and
applicable statutory taxes/ levies in addition to the fees.

As per Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration recommended by the Audit Committee shall be
considered and approved by the Board of Directors and ratified by the shareholders. Accordingly,
Members are requested to ratify the remuneration paid to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year
2020-21 and to authorize the Board to fix the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the Financial
Year 2021-22.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any
way, interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval.
By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Vishal Garg)
Company Secretary
Regd. Office:
NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area
Lodhi Road, New Delhi— 110003
CIN: U40102DL2007G0I170661
Dated: 23.9.2021

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS, STATUTORY AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD.

y

BRIEF RESUME OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING RE- APPOINTMENT

Name

Shri Praveen Saxena

Date of Birth & Age

26/12/1963
57 Years
(DIN No.: 07944144)

Date of Appointment

5.2.2021

Qualifications

B.E., Mech. Engg. from NIT Durgapur and PG Diploma in

Business Mgmnt. from MDI, Gurgaon

Expertise in specific functional area

Directorship held in other companies

1. Kanti Bijlee Utpadan Nigam Limited
2. Nabinagar Power Generating Company Private Limited

3. NTPC Electric Supply Company Limited

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees
across all Public Companies held as on

31.08.2021

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

NIL

No. of shares held in the Company

100

Attendance in Board Meetings till

31.08.2021

No. of Meetings during his tenure =4

No. of Meetings attended = 3

Relationship with other Directors and KMP

None




BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present 14" Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company along with Audited Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report
thereon for year ended on 315t March 2021.

COMPANY’S VISION

“To provide reliable & economical Power supply to Indian Railways and other stakeholders
for boosting India’s growth and augmentation of nation’s generation capacity”.

COMPANY’S MISSION

“To generate and provide reliable, cost effective energy with eco-friendly technologies,
maintaining an ethical and socially responsible organisation.”

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Your Company is setting up 1000 MW (4X250 MW) Thermal Power Project at Nabinagar in
Aurangabad district of Bihar to meet the traction and non-traction electric power requirement
of Railways.

Construction Activities under progress:

COD of Unit#4 have been targeted in Sep’21. Construction activities of Units, CHP, Rail
corridor, AHP and MUW are going on in full swing. Major milestones Boiler Light up,
Chemical cleaning, Turbine Deck Floating and Turbine Lube Oil Flushing are completed.
Major supply related to Unit #4 has already completed.

Total land acquired is 1,514.30 acres out of total requirement of 1,526.82 acres for the
project.

Ash Utilisation:

During the Financial Year 2020-21, 12,82,236 MT of ash was generated, out of which fly ash
generated was 9,10,004 MT ash utilized was 3,79,252 MT which was 29.58% of total ash
generated. The ash was issued to cement industry.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended on 31%t March 2020 and 31st
March 2021 are as under:-

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
(Rs in Lakh) (Rs in Lakh)
Balance Sheet
Paid-up Share Capital 2,39,746.15
2,35,384.46
Total Assets 9,11,642.56 9,21,195.68
1|Page
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Non-Current Assets 8,16,556.70 8,12,266.00
Current Assets 94,430.03 1,08,355.27
Total Liabilities (other than total 6,34,629.38 6,46,916.26
Equity)

Non-Current Liabilities 3,54,472.48 5,45,918.77
Current Liabilities 2,61,696.51 87,482.39
Non-Current Borrowings 3,53,921.96 5,44,909.96
Current Borrowings 1,50,000.00 -

Statement of Profit and Loss

Total Sales 2,18,617.27 2,29,360.97
Total Revenue 2,23,148.08 2,33,411.21
Total Expenses 1,89,975.31 2,04,909.77
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (PBT) 33,172.77 28,501.44
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (PAT) 28,247.92 25,846.33

Transfer to reserve
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31-03-2020 31-03-2019
CSR Reserve
Opening Balance - 35.27
Transfer during the year - 35.41
Transfer to retained - -70.68

earning
Closing Balance - -
Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 33,900.08 8,018.48

Transfer during the year 28,247.92 25,881.60

Less : Final Dividend FY 13,713.48

2019-20

Less : Interim Dividend 12,000.00

FY 2020-21

Closing Balance 36,434.50 33,900.08
Fly Ash utilization reserve fund

Opening Balance 633.19 147.87

Transfer during the year 199.34 485.32

Closing Balance 832.53 633.19

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other regulations
are as under:

(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO

Your company has installed following equipments for pollution control & conservation of
energy:

2|Page
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(i) Electrostatic Precipitator, Chimney, Cooling Towers, Ash handling equipments, Ash
Dyke, Ash water recirculation system, Effluent treatment plant, Dust extraction & suppression
system, fire detection system, DM plant waste treatment system, Sewerage treatment plant
& disposal, Environmental Lab equipment etc.

(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Provision of
Solar lights in plants as well as Project Affected Villages

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Approx. 350 Crore INR has
been earmarked for the above mentioned equipment’s.

During the period under review, there was no earning in the foreign exchange. Further, there
was no outgo in foreign exchange during the year

(2) The following information is provided in the Corporate Governance Report which
forms part of the Annual Report as Annex-ll:

a. Number of Meetings of the Board held during the year and attendance of Directors in
the Board Meeting.

b. Constitution of the Audit Committee, number of Meetings held during the year and
attendance of the Members in the Audit Committee.

c. Constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, number of Meetings held
during the year, if any and attendance of Members in the Meeting.

d. Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, number of Meetings held
during the year, if any and attendance of Members in the Meeting.

(3) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend 2% of the
average net profit of the company made during three immediately preceding financial years
in CSR activities. As the average net profit (loss) of the Company for three immediately
preceding financial years was % (51.94) Crores, the Company is required to spend NIL
amount on CSR activities in the FY 2020-21. However, company has spent Rs 36.80 lakh,
under the head of CSR on various activities.

(4) During the year the Company undertook the activities under Resettlement &
Rehabilitation Plan as a responsible corporate citizen in and around plant, details of which
are covered under the Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached as Annex-Il to
this Report.

(5) Statutory Auditors

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India through letter dated 17.08.2020 had appointed
M/s Chamaria & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2020-21. The Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22
are yet to be appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

(6) Management comments on Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have given an unqualified report on the accounts of
the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

3|Page
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

The Statutory Auditors have drawn emphasis of matter, through its Report dated 17.06.2021,
which is as under:

(i) The conveyance of 25.567973 acres of freehold land valued at % 811.95 Lakh is
still pending for registration since long although validity period of agreement for
sale of land has expired.

(ii) Confirmation of some of the balances and / or statement of accounts in respect of
Other advance Capex(GL Code-1034106), Initial advance(s) construction (GL
code- 1034100), Advances contractors -O & M (GL Code-1101300), Railway
claim recoverable (GL Code-1100837), and Other Claims (GL Code- 1100822),
GR Clearing/IR Clearing-CAPEX (GL Code 5000001), GR/IR Clearing-O & M (
GL Code 5000002),SR/IR- CAPEX ( GL Code( GL Code 5000003), SR/IR- O&M
(GL Code 5000004), Payable to Railways (GL Code 2070824) and
ContractorsControl A/C (GL Code 2101100) were not available. In view of above,
authenticity of such balances remained unverified.

(iii) The confirmation of balances appearing under head construction stores lying with
the contractors could not be verified in absence of joint verification statements in
this regard.

(iv) Prima Facie few of the work against which advances were made are still pending
for adjustment since long in absence of the progress report of the respective
work.

(v) Further as per norms of NGT utilization of Fly Ash Company has made
arrangement for lifting of Fly Ash with Shree Cement and Dalmia but quantity
lifted by them is less than the quantity mentioned in Letter of Award.

(vi) All amount receivables from Debtors has been shown as less than 6 months in
the Balance Sheet but an amount of Rs. 194.30Crore, withheld by Easter Central
Railways on account of LTA which is under petition with CERC and as per
observation of CAG for the year ending March,2020 management had assured
that they will make provision for the same if amount not received by the end of
March, 2021 still management has not made such provision even such disputed
amount is not received till the date of signing of report.

(7) Review of accounts by Comptroller & Auditor General of India

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), through letter dated 11.08.2021, has
given ‘NiI’ comments on the financial statements of your Company for the year ended on
31.03.2021. As advised by the C&AG, the contents of letter dated 11.08.2021 are being
placed with the report of the Statutory Auditors elsewhere in the Annual Report.

(8) Cost Audit

As prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Cost
Accounting records are maintained by the Company.

M/s Niran & Co., Cost Accountants, had been appointed as Cost Auditors under Section
148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2020-21.

The Cost Audit Report for your Company for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2020 was
filed with the Central Government on 10.10.2020.

4|Page
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The Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 shall be filed within the
prescribed time period under the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014.

(9) Your Company, being subsidiary of NTPC, is covered under the Enterprise Risk
Framework established by NTPC (Holding Co.). Details about risks with the Company are
covered in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report which forms part of this Report
and placed at Annex-I.

(10) Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annex- Ill to this Report.
(11) Performance Evaluation of the Directors and the Board

Section 178 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall, inter-alia, shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of
Board, its committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review
its implementation and compliance

As per Section 134(3) (p) read with Rule 8 (4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
every listed company and every other public company having a paid up share capital of
twenty five crore rupees or more calculated at the end of the preceding financial year shall
include, in the report by its Board of directors, a statement indicating the manner in which
formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual directors.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), through Notification dated 5th June 2015, has exempted
Government Companies from the provisions of Section 178 (2) and Section 134 (3) (p). The
aforesaid circular of MCA further exempted listed Govt. Companies from provisions of which
requires mentioning the manner of formal evaluation of its own performance by the Board
and that of its Committees and Individual Director in Board’'s Report, if directors are evaluated
by the Ministry or Department of the Central Government which is administratively in charge
of the company, or, as the case may be, the State Government as per its own evaluation
methodology.

Now, MCA, through Notification dated 05.07.2017, has amended Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to performance evaluation of directors of the Government
Companies that in case of matters of performance evaluation are specified by the concerned
Ministries or Departments of the Central Government or as the case may be, the State
Governments and such requirements are complied with by the Government companies, such
provisions of Schedule IV are exempt for the Government Companies.

As per the Articles of Association of BRBCL, all the Directors are nominated by NTPC and
Ministry of Railways (MOR). The Directors nominated by NTPC or MOR are being evaluated
under a well laid down procedure for evaluation of Functional Directors & CMD as well as of
Government Directors by Administrative/ respective Ministry/ Department. Also, the
performance of the Board of the Government Companies is evaluated during the
performance evaluation of the MOU signed with the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Limited.

5|Page




BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

(12) Secretarial Audit

The Board has appointed M/s A.Kaushal & Associates, Company Secretaries, to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial
year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith marked as Annex- V to this Report. The
Secretarial Auditor has given unqualified Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2020-
21.

(13) Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

During the period under review, all transactions with related parties were at arm’s length and
suitable disclosure has been provided in annual accounts. Approval has been taken from the
Audit Committee where the transaction with related party falls under the purview of the
Companies Act, 2013. All related party transactions were in the ordinary course of business
and were negotiated on an arm’s length basis. They were intended to further the Company’s
interests.

Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

(14) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

NIL.

Contingent Liabilities are detailed in Note — 40 of Notes to Accounts to Financial Statements
for the FY 2020-21.

The details of disputed statutory dues pending before appropriate authorities is detailed in
Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report.

(15) Adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial reporting:
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
reporting. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in
the design or operation were observed.

(16) Particulars of Employees:

As per provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every
company is required to disclose details of employees receiving remuneration exceeding limits
as prescribed from time to time in the Directors’ Report.

However, as per notification dated 5" June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, such particulars have not been included as part of
Directors’ Report.

In respect of employee from parent company NTPC Ltd- Employee benefits include provident
fund, pension, gratuity, post-retirement medical facilities, compensated absences, long

service award, economic rehabilitation scheme & other terminal benefits. In terms of the
arrangement with parent company, the company is to make a fixed contribution of the

6|Page
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aggregate of basic pay and dearness allowances for the period of service rendered in the
company accordingly, these employee benefits are treated as defined contribution scheme..

The company pays a defined contribution for provided fund for employees on its roll to the
fund administrated and managed by Govt. of India. Both the employee and the company
make monthly contribution to equal to a specified percentage of the employees salary. The
contributions to the fund for the year are recognized as an expenses and charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

In respect of employees on the roll of the company, expenditure in relation to gratuity and
leave encashment is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(17) Issue of Shares in the Financial Year:

During the year under review equity shares of face value 10 each total in numbers
4,36,16,925 were issued to promoters NTPC Ltd 3,22,76,923 and Ministry of Railway
1,13,40,002 in the ratio of 74:26.

(18) No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were
no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under
any scheme.

(19) Establishment of vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy

The Board of Director of your Company has approved the Whistle Blower Policy as required
under Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

(20) There were no frauds reported by auditors under section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013.

(21) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186

The Company has not granted any loans, given any guarantee or made any investments
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

(22) Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of
provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing
details of deposits, which are not in compliances with Chapter V of the Act, is not applicable.

(23) No Presidential Directive was issued by the Government during the year under review.

(24) The Company has approved and declared interim dividend of Rs. 1,20,00,00,000/- @ 5%
of the paid-up equity share capital of the company out of the profit of the Company for the
period for FY-2020-21. Further, Board of Directors, in its Meeting held on June 14, 2021
has recommended a final dividend of Rs. 20,00,00000/- @ 0.83% of the paid-up equity
share capital of the company.
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(25) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

BRBCL has constituted the Internal Complaints Committee under the provisions of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No
case of sexual harassment was received during the FY 2020-21.

(26) Procurement from MSEs:

The Government of India has notified a Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small
Enterprises (MSEs), Order 2012. In terms of the said policy, the total contract placed on and
procurement made from MSEs (including MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs) during the
year 2020-21 was Rs. 45.03 crore.” which was 22.18 % of total procurement against target of
20% of total procurement made by the Company.

*It excludes Primary fuel, Secondary fuel, Steel & Cement, the Project procurement including R&M packages
and procurement from OEM, OES & PAC sources.

(27) Statistical Information on Reservation of SCs/ STs for the year 2020-21
Nil

(28) Information on Differently Abled Persons

With a view to focus on its role as a socially responsible organization, BRBCL has
endeavored to take responsibility for adequate representation of Differently abled persons
(DAPs) in its workforce.

(29) Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies

Your Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies.

(30) Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the financial year 2020-21, no application was made, or any proceeding were pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(31) One-time Settlement and Valuation.

During the financial year 2020-21, no event has taken place that give rise to reporting of
details w.r.t. difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions.

(32) The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards.

The particulars of annexures forming part of this report are as under:

Particulars Annexure

Management Discussion & Analysis I

Report on Corporate Governance Il

Extract of Annual Return 1l
Annual Report on CSR v
Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 V
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

2. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year
2020-21 and of the profit of the company for that period;

3. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

4. the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

5. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, the following changes took place in Directors position:

1) Shri Ramesh Babu V., Director (Operations), NTPC was nominated as part-time
Chairman on the Board. He was appointed as Director w.e.f 18.8.2020 in place of
Shri A K Gupta, who ceased to be Director w.e.f. 31.7.2020 consequent upon
attaining age of superannuation from its parent company.

2) Shri Chilakapati Sivakumar ceased to be Chief Executive officer w.e.f. 30" May, 2020
and Shri P.M. Jena has been appointed as Chief Executive officer w.e.f. 1%June,
2020.

3) Shri Asit Kumar Mukherjee, Executive Director, NTPC was nominated as Additional
Director on the Board by NTPC. He was appointed as Director w.e.f 26.5.2020 in lace
of Shri S. Narendra, who ceased to be Director w.e.f 30.4.2020 consequent upon
attaining age of superannuation from its parent company.

4) Shri Praveen Saxena, Executive Director, NTPC was nominated as Additional
Director on the Board by NTPC. He was appointed as Director w.e.f 5.2.2021 in place
of Shri Asit Kumar Mukherjee, who ceased to be Director w.e.f 31.1.2021 consequent
upon attaining age of superannuation from its parent company.

5) Shri Manoj Srivastava ceased to be Chief Financial officer w.e.f. 7"January, 2021 and
Shri Amarendra Kumar has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f.
14"January, 2021.

The Board wishes to place on record its deep appreciation for the valuable services rendered
by Shri A K Gupta, Shri Asit Kumar Mukherjee, Shri C SivaKumar and Manoj
Srivastavaduring their association with the Company.

The Board also welcome Shri Ramesh Babu V., Shri Praveen Saxena, Director, P Jena,
CEO and Amarendra Kumar, CFO on the Board of your Company.
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As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri R K Jain, Director shall retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors acknowledge with deep sense of appreciation for the co-operation extended
by Ministry of Power and Ministry of Railways.

Your Directors also convey their gratitude to the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Ltd., Power
Finance Corporation Limited, Rural Electrification Corporation Limited, auditors, bankers,
contractors, vendors and consultants of the Company.

We wish to place on record our appreciation for the untiring efforts and contributions by the
employees at all levels to ensure that the Company continues to grow and excel.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Ramesh Babu V)
Chairman
(DIN: 08736805)
PLACE: New Delhi
DATE: 23.9.2021
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Annex-I to the Directors’ Report to BRBCL
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC AND SECTOR OUTLOOK

According to the provisional estimates of Annual National Income for the financial year
2020-21 and quarterly estimates of Gross Domestic Product for the Fourth Quarter (Q4)
of the financial year 2020-21, released by National Statistical Office of Ministry of
Statistics & Programme Implementation (MOSPI) on 31 May 2021, the growth rate in
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at constant (2011-12) prices for the financial year 2020-
21 is estimated at (-) 7.3%, as against 4% in the previous year. The contraction in the
economy is primarily due to the prevailing pandemic and this being a global
phenomenon; the contraction is comparable to that of other developing economies.

As per World Economic Outlook Update, released by IMF in January 2021, the growth
projection for India for the year 2021 is highest (11.5%) as against that for the other
BRICS countries, i.e., Brazil (3.6%), Russia (3.0%), China (8.3%) & South Africa (2.8%).
As per Monetary Policy Report of RBI published in April 2021, the real GDP growth for
the financial year 2021-22 is estimated to be 10.50%.

Quarterly growth rate analysis shows that during Q1 (April-June) of the financial year
2020-21, GDP contracted to the extent of (-) 23.92%, but it started improving in the
subsequent quarters. Growth rate was (-) 7.54% during Q2, 0.4% during Q3 and 1.6%
during Q4 of the financial year 2020-21. The growth seems to be in line with growth
projections made by IMF and RBI for the coming year.

For the electricity sector, Index of Industrial Production (IIP) has declined by 17.64%
(average) from April to August with respect to previous year; however, it has grown by
11% (average) during the balance period of the financial year 2020-21. On annual basis,
electricity sector has contracted 0.5% while the mining and manufacturing sectors have
declined by (-) 7.8% & (-) 9.8% respectively during the financial year 2020-21. With
economy projected to look up, IIP is very much likely to turn around.

Further, the outlook of the sector seems positive as represented through improvement
in various global rankings. India’s overall rank in World Bank’s "Ease of Doing
Business" is 6314 in 2020, improving from a rank of 142rd in 2015. Indian Power Sector
has also improved its ranking to 22nd in 2020 from earlier ranking of 137t in 2015 in
“Getting Electricity”, which is one of the ten parameters of “Ease of Doing Business”
ranking.

During the year 2020-21, the major reforms in the power sector are:

* Revision of National Electricity Policy 2021, with a focus on improving
DISCOMs’ financial viability, promotion of clean and sustainable power and
development of an efficient electricity market. Emphasis has also been put on
‘Make in India’ and ‘ATMANIRBHAR Bharat’.

= National Electricity Plan 2022, for integrated planning of generation capacity,
transmission, fuel management, human resources and fund requirements with
detailed plan until 2027 and perspective until 2032.

= 20t Electric Power Survey (EPS), for projection of electricity demand from the
financial year 2021-22 to 2031-32 (year-wise) and for terminal years 2036-37
and 2041-42.

* Amendment of Electricity Act, with proposed elements such as formulation of
National Renewable Energy Policy, setting up of Electricity Contract
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Enforcement Authority, Tariff determination with direct benefit transfer (DBT) of
subsidy by State Governments.

» Implementation of Payment Security Mechanism through LC and Smart
Metering.

* Electricity (Late Payment Surcharge) rules 2021, to support the DISCOMs
financially and for timely payment to Generators.

* Electricity (Right of Consumers) Rules 2020, for integration of the distributed
renewable generation.

These reforms are likely to help the sector’s growth in terms of renewable capacity,
increase in investment in the sector, improvement in the health of DISCOMs, reduction
in pending receivables of the generating companies etc.

Since March 2020, COVID 19 has affected the sector in terms of reduction in electricity
demand due to countrywide lockdown and slow-down of industrial activities. However,
during the 3rd quarter of the financial year 2020-21, the growth in peak demand turned
positive with an increase of 4.4% on YoY basis and electricity demand increased by
8.4% to reach 317 BUs as compared to 293 BUs for the same period of the previous
year.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Power sector is a key enabler for India’s economic growth. The sector with its three
pillars: generation, transmission and distribution, is crucial to India’s infrastructure
and economic development. The global stature of Indian Power Sector is depicted well
by its positioning in terms of generation capacity. India is ranked 3t in the world in
terms of electricity generation, 4th in installed renewable energy capacity and 6t in
installed hydro capacity, as reported by international agencies like IEA, Statista, IRENA
etc. The achievements and various issues/ challenges faced by the Power Sector and
key initiatives undertaken by Ministry of Power are discussed in the ensuing
paragraphs.

Snapshot 2020-21

e Gross annual generation of the country (including import from Bhutan and
including renewables) decreased marginally from 1,389 BUs in the previous year to
1,382 BUs in the financial year 2020-21.

e Generation from renewable sources increased from 138 BUs to 147 BUs, while
generation from conventional sources decreased from 1,251 BUs to 1,235 BUs.

e Net generation capacity of 4,638 MW (excluding renewables) was added during the
financial year 2020-21.

e With net addition of 7,407 MW, renewable energy capacity has reached 94,434 MW
at the end of the financial year 2020-21, an increase of 8.51% over the previous
year.

e 16,750 Ckms of transmission lines added during the year as compared to 11,664
Ckms in the previous year.

e 56,575 MVA of transformation capacity added during the year as against 68,230
MVA in the previous year.

e PLF of coal-based stations decreased to 54.56% in the financial year 2020-21 from
55.89% in the previous year.
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e During the financial year 2020-21, energy deficit as well as peak demand deficit
have reduced marginally from 0.5% to 0.4% and 0.7% to 0.4% respectively, on YoY
basis.

Existing Installed Capacity

The total installed capacity in the country as on 31 March 2021 was more than 382 GW
(including renewables) with Private Sector contributing about 47% of the installed
capacity followed by State Sector with 27% share and Central Sector with 26% share.

Sector Total Capacity (MW) % share
Central 97,507 26
State 1,03,869 27
Private 1,80,775 47
Total 3,82,151 100

Mode-wise installed capacity in the country as on 31 March 2021 is as under:

Mode Total Capacity (MW) % share
Thermal 2,34,728 61
Nuclear 6,780 2
Hydro 46,209 12
RES (Renewables) 94,434 25
Total 3,82,151 100

(Source: Central Electricity Authority)

Capacity Utilization and Generation
Sector wise PLF in % (Coal based stations)

Sector 2020-21 2019-20
Central 63.72 63.84
State 46.71 50.84
Private 57.18 62.49
Private IPP 54.23 54.01
All India 54.56 55.89

(Source: Central Electricity Authority
Generation

Sector-wise and fuel-wise break-up of conventional generation (in BUs) for the financial
year 2020-21 is detailed as under:

Sector Thermal Hydro Nuclear ?::;?:: Total
Central 363 61 43 - 467
State 291 76 - -- 367
Private 379 13 -- -- 392
Bhutan Import - - - 9 9
Total 1033 150 43 9 1235

(Source: Central Electricity Authority)

Sector-wise share in Installed Capacity (conventional) vis-a-vis share in Generation
(conventional):
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Sector Share in installed capacity (%) Share in generation (%)
Central 26 38
State 27 30
Private 47 32
100 100

(Source: Central Electricity Authority)

Central sector utilities have performed better as compared to State and Private sector
utilities in terms of share in generation vis-a-vis share in installed capacity.

Consumption

The per capita consumption of power in India has reached 1,208 units in the financial
year 2019-20 (provisional, at an average growth of 2.5% over the last 3 years). It is
around 40% of the global average (3,049 units for 2019), providing enough room for
growth in India.

In this context, Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana (SAUBHAGYA) was
launched with an objective to provide energy access to all by providing last mile
connectivity. Under this scheme, about 99.99% households have been electrified. Out of
remaining 17,337 un-electrified & partially electrified villages, infrastructure work has
been completed in 16,752 villages (97 %) while physical work has been completed in 10
out of 15 districts.

The total electricity consumption in India decreased to 1,271 BUs in the financial year
2020-21 from 1,284 BUs in the previous year, mainly due to slowdown in economy due
to the pandemic.

Major end users of power are broadly classified into six categories: Agricultural,
Commercial, Domestic, Industrial, Traction & Railways and Others. Their shares of
electricity consumption, during 2019-20, were approximately 17.7%, 8.1%, 24%,
42.7%, 1.5% and 6%, respectively. During the financial year 2020-21, because of
lockdown affecting the economic activities, the consumption share of different sectors
have gone through significant variations. For example, share of domestic consumption
has increased significantly to about 36% whereas share of industry has reduced to
about 32%.

Transmission

The total inter-regional transmission capacity of country has increased from 75,050 MW
at the end of 12t plan to 105,050 MW as on 31 March 2021, with an average growth
rate of 10% in last 4 years. During the financial year 2020-21, 3,000 MW inter-regional
transmission capacity was added. This augmentation of the national grid is essential for
supporting higher injection of renewables into the grid for transfer of power from RE
rich states to other states.

Distribution

Distribution is the key link in realizing the Government of India’s vision of supplying
reliable 24x7 Power for All. For this, the financial health of distribution companies is of
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prime importance so that they are able to discharge their functions & responsibilities
efficiently. Slowdown in the economy induced by the pandemic and subsequent
decrease in industrial power demand has adversely affected DISCOMs on this aspect.

To improve the situation, Government of India (GOI) has provided a stimulus of X
90,000 crore under the ATMANIRBHAR Bharat scheme. Further, under the Union
Budget for the financial year 2021-22, a performance linked power distribution scheme
has been launched with an outlay of X 3,05,984 crore over a period of five years to aid
DISCOMs in infrastructure creation including pre-paid smart-metering, feeder
separation and upgradation of systems.

Electricity (Amendment) Bill, 2021 proposes amendments for adoption of de-licensing
and franchise model for power distribution business to bring in competition. These
steps are likely to reduce Average Cost of Supply-Average Realisable Revenue (ACS-
ARR) gap and AT&C losses resulting in improved financial health of DISCOMs.

National Electricity Policy 2021, which is under revision by Ministry of Power, also
emphasises on improving the financial viability of DISCOMs.

Power Trading

In India, power is transacted largely through long term Power Purchase Agreements
(PPA) entered into, between Generating companies and the Distribution utilities. A
small portion is transacted through various short-term mechanisms wherein the
contract is of less than one-year period like electricity transacted through inter-State
Trading Licensees and directly by the Distribution Licensees, power exchanges such as
Indian Energy Exchange Ltd. (IEX) and Power Exchange India Ltd. (PXIL) and Deviation
Settlement Mechanism (DSM).

In the financial year 2020-21, around 88% of power generated in the country was
transacted through the long-term PPA route and about 12% of the power was
transacted through short-term trading mechanisms.

Key Initiatives/Reforms & Regulatory Changes in Power Sector

1. CERC Regulations

e CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019 notified on 7 March
2019, which are applicable for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2024. The
tariff of electricity generated from various NTPC stations is determined by CERC,
based on station-specific petitions filed before the Commission, as per these
Regulations.

e CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) (1st Amendment) Regulations, 2020
regarding servicing of capital and operational expenditure incurred on
installation and operation of Emission Control Systems through determination
of supplementary capacity charges and supplementary energy charges.

e CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) (2d Amendment) Regulations, 2020
regarding determination of transfer price of coal from captive coal mines by the
generating company.

e CERC (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations,
2020 effective from 1 November 2020. These regulations provide the framework
for sharing of interstate transmission charges and losses by the various users.

2. Renewable Purchase Obligations (RPO) targets
To achieve 175 GW of renewable capacity by 2022, Ministry of Power in

consultation with MNRE has notified RPO trajectory. For the financial year 2020-

Page 5 of 12

\U



BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

21, RPO targets were set at 19% (8.75% for Solar and 10.25% for Non-Solar
renewables).

For the financial year 2021-22, RPO target of 21.18% comprising of 10.50% Solar
and 10.68% Non-Solar renewables including 0.18% hydro has been notified.
Further, a committee has been constituted by MNRE to define RPO trajectory
beyond the financial year 2021-22.

With the objective of adding more than 30,000 MW hydropower by the financial
year 2029-30, MOP has also introduced Hydro Purchase Obligation (HPO) and
specified long-term trajectory of HPO from the financial year 2021-22 to 2029-30.
To achieve these targets, large hydro plants including pumped storage plants
having capacity of more than 25 MW & commissioned after 8 March 2019 have
been declared as renewable energy plants.

3. Late Payment Surcharge) Rules, 2021
The Central Government has notified the Electricity (Late Payment Surcharge)

Rules, 2021 applicable to Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs), Power Supply
Agreements (PSAs) and Transmission Service Agreements (TSAs), where tariff is
determined under Section-62 and Section-63 of the Electricity Act.

These rules provide for a graded late payment surcharge, applicable on outstanding
amounts beyond the due date. This rule will reduce the burden on DISCOMs
without affecting payment discipline as it has provision for debarment of DISCOMs
from procuring power from a power exchange or grant of short-term open access if
the dues remain unpaid beyond seven months.

4. Electricity Consumer Rules
Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020 has been notified in December 2020

to protect the rights of the consumers. It specifies time limits for giving various
services to electricity consumers by DISCOMs.

These rules provide a framework for “prosumers” to set up distributed renewable
energy generation units either by themselves or through a service provider.
Guidelines for smart meters, online bill payments, reliability and quality of service,
compensation & penalties for delay in service have also been provided.

After notification of above rules, MOP has proposed amendment to net metering
limit i.e., up to SOOKW or sanctioned load (whichever is lower). The amendment is
aimed at promoting prosumers further.

5. Green Term Ahead Market (GTAM)
As a first step towards greening the Indian short-term power market, GOI has
launched Green Term Ahead Market (GTAM) in electricity on 1 September 2020.
This allows an additional avenue to the generators for sale of renewable energy;
enable obligated entities to procure renewable power at competitive prices to meet
their Renewable Purchase Obligations (RPO).

GTAM transactions are bilateral with clear identification of corresponding buyers
and sellers. GTAM contracts are segregated into Solar RPO & Non-Solar RPO and

within the two segments GTAM contracts consist of Green Intraday, Day Ahead
Contingency, Daily and Weekly Contracts.
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6. Waiver of Inter State Transmission System (ISTS) charges and losses
The Ministry of Power vide its order dated 15 January 2021 has provided that no

ISTS charges will be levied on transmission of the electricity generated from solar
and wind power plants (including solar-wind hybrid) with or without storage,
commissioned up to 30 June 2023.

This waiver shall be applicable for power sale to distribution licensees, irrespective
of whether this power is within the RPO or not, provided that the power has been
procured competitively under the guidelines issued by the MOP.

Power from such solar and wind plants may also be used for charging of storage
including Hydro pumped storage plants. The waiver shall be applicable for twenty-
five years from commissioning of such projects.

7. Coal allocation for short term power procurement
In December 2019, Government had issued guidelines for Coal supply to power

plants which (including private generators) do not have PPAs. These guidelines
allow Coal Linkage to such plants through auction for a period of three months to
one year, provided further that the power generated through that linkage is sold in
Day Ahead Market (DAM) through power exchanges or in short term by a
transparent bidding process through Discovery of Efficient Energy Price (DEEP)
portal.

Further, on 12 May 2020, the Government has relaxed the eligibility criteria for
participation in the coal linkage auction, permitting any commissioned power plant
(single unit or multiple units located in the same premise) owned by Government or
Private Companies for the capacity for which no PPA has been signed.

8. Real Time Market (RTM)
CERC has introduced Real Time Market (RTM) in electricity from June 2020, with a

financially and physically binding framework in place. This real time market is
likely to provide an alternate mechanism for DISCOMs to access a larger market. It
provides for power transactions with separate market clearing price and market
clearing volume for each time block of 15 minutes.

The generators having long-term contract and participating in this market for
selling their un-requisitioned surplus (URS) power are required to share the net
gains with the DISCOMs in the ratio of 50:50 subject to a cap of 7p/kWh.

9. Utilization of Agro-residue for power generation & reduce pollution
The Government has taken initiatives to utilize Agro-residue for power generation.
This is intended to reduce emissions by discouraging farmers from burning crop
residue and to provide extra income to them through sale of crop residue.

Biomass has been recognised as a carbon neutral fuel and biomass co-firing is a
technology recognized by UNFCCC as a measure of reducing greenhouse gas
emission. Draft National Mission on use of Biomass is initiated by MOP to
institutionalize the use of Biomass as a fuel. The mission will work on logistics,
regulatory framework, and research on boiler modification to enable biomass firing.

10. Sale of 50% coal from captive blocks
Through the notified amendment in the Mines and Minerals (Development and
Regulation) Amendment Act, 2021, the Government has relaxed the norms for sale
of coal from captive mines. The amendment provides for sale of up to fifty percent of
coal production from the captive mine after meeting the requirement of the linked
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end use plant. This will help in reduction in import of coal by increasing the
production from captive mines.

SWOT ANALYSIS
Strength/ Opportunity

The Company is backed by strong promoters i.e. Ministry of Railways and NTPC Limited.
NTPC is the consultant for the Company which is having a wide experience in engineering
and management expertise from planning to commissioning and operating power
plants. Indian Railways, being a big transport organization, consumes about 2% of the total
power generation of the country which is likely to go up with the current pace of
electrification. Presently, the peak power requirement of IR is about 4000 MW which is being
fed to the electric traction network of IR through its odd 400 traction sub stations spread
across the length and breadth of the country. Out of this requirement, Nabinagar power
plant having 1000 MW capacity will cater the need of 900 MW of Indian Railways and 100
MW will be given to the Bihar Government. Thus, BRBCL has good future prospects of
dealing with the organisation like IR having sound financial fundamentals.

The Company is able to acquire major portion of land for establishing the project. Bharat
Heavy Electricals Limited is the main plant contractor. The Company has tied up loan with
Power Finance Corporation Limited, Bank of Baroda and Canara Bank for meeting its debt
portion. The Company has coal linkage for (4X250 MW) capacity.

Weakness/ Threats:

The major threat the company is facing in acquiring parts of land. Law and order situation
and project security have also been a concern for the Company.

RISKS AND CONCERN

The risk to which company is exposed and the initiatives taken by the company to mitigate
such risks are given below:

The project is delayed as there is delay in the land acquisition due to which contractors are
demanding additional compensation. This issues are being dealt as per provision of the
contract and project implementation is being expedited to minimize the time overrun.

Hazard risks are related to natural hazards arising out of accidents and natural calamities
like fire, earthquake etc.

Operational risks are associated with systems, processes & people and cover areas such as
succession planning, retaining of people at project, operational failure or interruption,
disruption in supply chain, failure of research & development facilities and faulty
application of information technology and non-compliance of regulatory provisions.

Also, non-receipt of schedule for generation of power and non-receipt of equity in time from
Railways.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has robust internal systems and processes for efficient conduct of business.
The Company is complying with relevant laws and regulations. It is following delegation of
powers as is being followed in NTPC Limited. The accounts are being prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from
time to time and as per the guidelines issued from NTPC Limited. The Company has
implemented SAP in all modules. It is helping the Company a lot in retrieving data and
maintaining systematic backup.

Page 8 of 12

Y /



In order to ensure that all checks and balances are in place and all internal systems are in
order, regular and exhaustive internal audits are conducted by experienced firm of
Chartered Accountants in coordination with Internal Audit Department of NTPC Limited.
The Company has constituted an Audit Committee to oversee the financial performance of
the company. The scope of this Committee includes compliance with Internal Control
Systems.

FINANCIAL DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments
thereto, the Companies Act, 2013, and the provisions of Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent
applicable. The Company is involved in the generation and sale of bulk power to Indian
Railways and State Power Utilities.

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

Non-current assets

(in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 % change |
Property, Plant and 584,140.84 613,292.93 (4.75)
equipment
Intangible Assets 40.19 26.79 50.02
Capital work-in- 209,214.75 1,80,172.84 16.12
progress
Others 4,700.53 5,258.34 (10.61)
Deferred tax assets 18,460.39 13,515.10 36.59

Total depreciation charged on property, plant and equipment upto 31.03.2021 was
¥ 106,095.13 Lakh. The Gross carrying amount of fully depreciated property, plant and
equipment that are still in use as at 31.03.2021 is % 1,228.32 Lakh as against
% 1,008.82 Lakh as at 31.03.2020.

Current assets

(in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 % change |
Inventories 9,139.17 10,114.15 (9.64)
Trade Receivables 30,583.37 34,542.56 (11.46)
Cash and cash 18,118.31 31,313.78
equivalents (42.14)
Bank Balances other 1,147.39 882.50
than cash and cash
equivalents 30.02
Other Financial Assets 21,592.62 20,433.47 5.67
Others 13,849.17 11,068.81 25.12

Inventories include coal, fuel oil, stores and spares, chemicals & consumables, steel, loose
tools, etc.

Liabilities — Non-current

(in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 % Change |
Borrowings 532,142.29 544,909.96 (2.34)
Secured Term Loan 370,274.36 249,191.34 48.59
from Bank
Page 9 of 12
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Secured Loan from 161,867.93 295,718.62 (45.26)
others

Other financial 550.52 1,008.81 (45.43)
liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities - -

The Company had an initial term loan facility of % 3,74,675.00 Lakh

(PFC: % 2,24,800.00 Lakh and REC: X 1,49,875.00). The repayment schedule is for a period
of 15 years, beginning after 6 months from COD of the station, in 60 quarterly instalments.

The Company has 2nd term loan agreement of X 25,325.00 Lakh from PFC. The repayment
schedule of loan is 15 years, beginning after 6 months from COD of the station, in 60
quarterly instalments.

The Company has also taken 3 term loan from PFC with repayment schedule of 15 years
beginning after 6 months from COD of the station in 60 quarterly instalments.

Refinancing

In the first phase of refinancing company has prepaid entire term loan facility avail from
REC % 1,49,875.00 Lakh by availing loan facility at competitive rate of interest from Bank of
Baroda(Vijaya Bank).

In second phase of refinancing company has part prepaid term loan facility availed from PFC
% 100,000.00 Lakh and 120,000.00 Lakh by availing Term Loan facility and General Purpose

Loan at competitive rate of interest from Canara Bank.

There have been no defaults in repayment of the loan or interest thereon as at the end of the
year.

Current Liabilities

(in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 % Change |
Trade Payables 16,375.10 13,589.26 20.50
Other financial 48,486.63* 56,992.80 (14.92)
liabilities
Other current liabilities 1,163.30** 205.84 465.15
Provisions 17,451.15 16,694.49 4.5

*Current maturities of Term Loans % 28,220.33 lakh ( %16,658.34 lakh + 11,561.99 Lakh) included in
Borrowings to make figures comparable.

Other financial liabilities include Payment due for capital expenditure (for micro and small
enterprises and other than micro and small enterprises), Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings, payment to be made to Contractors, NTPC Ltd, Employees and others.

** For FY 2020-21, Other current liabilities includes Provision for Tax Payable net of Advance Tax % 972.70
lakh, previous year X Nil.

Regulatory deferral account credit balances on account of exchange differences for the year
ended 31.03.2021 is T 18,460.39 Lakh.

Page 10 of 12
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Revenue

(in Lakh
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 % change |
Energy sales 218,617.27 229,360.97 (4.68)
Sale of fly ash 199.34 477.11 (58.22)
Interest from - - -
customers
Other income 4,530.31 4,050.24 11.85

Company’s revenues arise from sale energy and other income. Revenue from other income
comprises late payment surcharge, interest from banks, employees, contractors, sale of
scrap and other miscellaneous income. The majority of the Company’s operations in India
are regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003. Accordingly, the CERC determines the tariff
for the Company’s power plants based on the norms prescribed in the tariff regulations as
applicable from time to time.

Energy sales are net of rebate to beneficiaries amounting to X 415.00 Lakh as at 31.03.2021
as against ¥ (171.08) Lakh as at 31.03.2020.

It is pertinent to note that the complete amount of sale of fly ash is transferred to fly ash
utilisation reserve fund.

Expenses

(in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 % change |
Fuel 94,678.65 108,513.22 (12.75)
Employee benefits 9,597.17 7,484.51 28.23
expense
Finance costs 40,677.64 44.736.15 (9.07)
Depreciation and 31,469.18 31,270.64 0.63
amortization expense
Other expenses 13,552.67 12,905.25 5.02

Expenditure on fuel constituted around 50% of the total expenditure of the Company during
the financial year ended 31.03.2021.

Profits
The Company has made Net Profit after Tax of % 28,247.92 Lakh.
HUMAN RESOURCE

Presently, the Company has total strength of 254 employees (including 12 Non-Executives
and excluding 30 Diploma Trainees). All employees, excluding 30 Diploma Holders, have
been deputed from the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Limited. As a social responsible and
social conscious organization, the Company has deployed 38 SC employees, 17 ST
employees and 69 OBC(NCL) & 6 OBC(CL) employees out of total strength of 254 employees
deputed from NTPC.

The Company is paying Performance Related Pay to its employees in order to boost their
morale and also extending the facility of retention of family anywhere in India. Further to
this, various welfare measures including cultural activities for employees and their family
members are also undertaken for boosting employee’s morale.

Further to this, we have Executive club and Ladies club which takes care of sports and
cultural activities.

Page 11 of 12
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The employee benefits expense (salaries & wages, contribution to provident & other funds
and staff welfare expenses) was 3 9597.17 lakh for the financial year 2020-21. An amount of
¥ 1856.13 lakh was included in employee benefits expense towards provident fund, pension,
gratuity, post-retirement medical benefits facilities and other terminal benefits and X 25.82
lakh was payable to NTPC Limited towards leave and other benefits. Similarly, an amount of
% Nil was included in employee benefits expense towards provident fund, pension, gratuity,
post-retirement medical benefits facilities and other terminal benefits and I Nil lakh was
payable to Ministry of Railways towards leave and other benefits.

REHABILITATION AND RESETTLEMENT ACTIVITIES

Your Company has taken up number of steps towards rehabilitation and resettlement like
restoration of Pond in Dhundua & Khaira village, construction of culvert in Dhundua village,
installation of 54 nos. hand pumps for drinking water in PAP villages, 06 numbers irrigation
borewells, ¥ 424.46 lakhs spent on construction of ITI building and ¥ 34.50 lakhs spend
towards ITI scholarship to wards of PAPs. Company has also constructed village road in PAP
Village around 19.86 KM.

OUTLOOK

The company’s outlook is very bright. It will generate sufficient revenue for the growth and
development of the company as well as of the nearby community at large once the plant
becomes operational.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing objectives, projections
and estimates, are forward-looking statements and progressive, within the meaning of
applicable security laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or
implied, depending upon economic condition, Government policies and other incidental/
related factors.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Ramesh Babu V.)
Chairman
(DIN:08736805)
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 23.09.2021
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Annex-II to the Directors’ Report to BRBCL

Report on Corporate Governance

Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (BRBCL) has made a strong commitment to ensure trust
in the Company and to enhance shareholders’ value through effective decision-making and
improved communication between the management, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and
the shareholders. Corporate Governance philosophy of BRBCL is as under:

“Enhancement of stakeholders” value through pursuit of excellence, efficiency of operations,
quest for growth and continuous innovation.”

The Company’s framework for Corporate Governance is intended to decrease business risk,
maximise value and utilise the Company’s resources in an efficient, sustainable manner for the
benefit of shareholders, employees and society at large.

The Company believes that sound Corporate Governance is vital to enhance and retain
stakeholder trust. Good Governance is one of the essential pillars for building an efficient and
sustainable environment and to ensure that the affairs of the Company are being managed in a
way which ensure accountability, transparency andresponsibility in all its transactions in the
widest sense and meeting its stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectations.
Implementation of good governance indicates not only the compliance of the laws and
regulations of the land but also indicates the values, practices and culture of the organisation.

Your Company adheres to the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India to the extent

such compliances are within the ambit of the Company.

Board of Directors

At BRBCL, the Board fulfils the following four major roles viz. overseeing the risk profile of
Company, monitoring the integrity of business and control mechanisms, ensuring the expert
management and maximising the interests of its stakeholders. The responsibilities of Board of
Directors are well defined and every director is familiarised on the functioning of the
Company. The Board has always made decisions that are independent of management.

The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for overseeing the
Company’s overall functioning. Over the years, the Board has always endeavoured to fulfil
corporate responsibility towards our stakeholders. The Board has necessary authority and
processes to review and evaluate our operations when required. Further, the Board makes
decisions that are independent of the Management.

i. Composition of the Board

The Company is managed by the strong Boardwho are well acquainted about their
duties and responsibilities. As per the Articles, the company shall have a minimum of 4
Directors and not more than 15 Directors, Directors are to be nominated by both parties
i.e. NTPC and Ministry of Railways in accordance with their equity shareholding. The
respective parties shall determine the period for which their respective

nominees shall hold office.
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The Chairman of the Board shall always be a Director nominated by NTPC.

ii. Independent Directors

DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs requires the Company to
appoint two Independent Directors on the Board. However, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, through Notification dated 05.07.2017, has exempted the public unlisted
wholly-owned subsidiary Companies from appointing Independent Directors.

We understand that the above DPE Guidelines are under revision to align it with
the Companies Act, 2013.

iii. Woman Directors

As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed
one Woman Director on its Board.

iv. Board Meetings

As on 31.03.2021, there were 4 (four) Directors on the Board as under:

S. No.| Name of Director Designation Date of Appointment

1. Shri Ramesh Babu V. | Chairman (nominated | Chairman w.e.f. 18.8.2020
by NTPC)

2. Shri R.K. Jain Director (nominated by | Director w.e.f. 16.7.2018
Ministry of Railways)

3. Shri Praveen Saxena | Director (nominated by | Director w.e.f. 5.2.2021
NTPC)

4. Smt. Renu Narang Director (nominated by | Director w.e.f. 19.11.2019
NTPC)

During the year, four Meetings of the Board were held on 9.6.2020, 22.9.2020,
13.1.2021 and 5.3.2021. The attendance of Directors in Board Meetings was as

under:
Date of the Meeting/ Name DIN BOARD MEETINGS
of the Director 09.06.20 | 22.09.20 | 13.01.21 | 05.03.21

Shri A.K.Gupta (ceased to

07269906 Yes N.A N.A N.A
be Director w.e.f 31.7.2020)
Shri Ramesh Babu V.

08736805 N.A Yes Yes Yes
(w.e.f. 18.8.2020)
Shri R.K. Jain 08180329 Yes Yes Yes Yes
Smt. Renu Narang 08070565 Yes Yes Yes Yes
Shri Asit Kumar
Mukherjee (ceased to be 08741853 Yes Yes Yes N.A
Director w.e.f. 31.1.2021)
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Shri Praveen Saxena (w.e.f.

5.2.2021)

07944144 N.A N.A N.A Yes

In all Board Meetings, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary were duly present.

v. Number of Shares held by the Directors as on 31.03.2021

Name of Directors No. of shares
Shri Ramesh Babu V. 100
Smt. Renu Narang 100
Shri Praveen Saxena 100
Shri R K Jain Nil

3. Committees of the Board

The Board committees are considered as pillars of corporate governance. Our Board has
constituted Committees to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the
authority delegated to each of the Committees. Each Committee of the Board is guided by its
Charter, which defines the scope, powers and composition of the Committee. All decisions and
recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for information and approval
respectively. Senior functional executives are also invited, as and when required, to provide
necessary information/clarification to the Committees of the Board. We have following sub-
committees of the Board as on 31.03. 2021:

A. Audit Committee

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

D. Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee

A. Audit Committee

The term of reference of Audit Committee is in accordance with Section 177(4) of the Companies
Act, 2013and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, which includes the
following:

(i) Discussions with the Auditors about the scope of audit including observations of
auditors;

(i) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that financial statement are correct, sufficient and
credible;

(iii) Noting appointment and removal of external auditors. Recommendingaudit fee
of external auditors and also approval for payment for any other service;

(iv) Recommending appointment and remunerationof Cost Auditors;
(v)  Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;
(vi) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with
related parties;
(vii) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
(viii) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
(ix) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
(x)  Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;
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Receiving the findings of any internal investigation by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
Consider and review the following with the management, internal Auditor and
the independent Auditor:
1. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
recommendations;
2. Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions
on the Scope of the activities or access to required information.
Review of all financial reports including Annexure to Cost Audit; Reports, Internal
Audit reports etc;
Review of Management Discussion and Analysis report;
Review of half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the

y

Board for approval, with particular reference to:
1. Change, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the
same;
2. Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit
findings;
3. Disclosure of any related party transactions;
4. Qualifications in audit report.
Review of observations of Statutory Auditors and Comptroller and Auditor
General of India and
Such matters as may be referred to it by the Board of Directors, from time to time.

(xvi)
(xvii)

The constitution of the Audit Committee of the Company as on 31.03.2021 comprised 3
(three) Members as under:

(i) Smt.Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee
(ii) Shri R. K. Jain, Director
(iii) Shri Praveen Saxena, Director

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

During the year, four Meetings of the Committee were held on 09.06.2020, 22.09.2020,
13.01.2021 and 05.03.2021. The attendance of Directors in these Meetings was as under:

Date of the Meeting/ 9.6.2020

Name of the Member 22.9.2020 | 13.1.2021 5.3.2021
Smt. Renu Narang,

Chairperson of the Yes Yes Yes Yes
Committee

Shri R. K. Jain, Director Yes Yes Yes Yes
Shri Asit Kumar

Mukharjee, Director Yes Yes Yes N.A.
(Member upto 28.02.21)

Shri Praveen Saxena N.A NA N.A No
(Member w.e.f. 05.02.21) o o o

During the year, there is no instance, where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation(s) of the Audit Committee.

Your Company has ensured to remain in the regime of unqualified statement.
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B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The term of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in accordance with
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, which is as under:

(i)  Shall identify who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the board their appointment and
removal;

(if)  Shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes
& recommend to the board a policy relating to the remuneration for, KMP &
other employees;

(iif) ~ Shall while formulating the policy, NRC ensure that:

1. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear & meets
appropriate performance benchmarks; and
2. Remuneration to KMP and senior management involves a balance
between fixed & incentive pay reflecting short & long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company &
its goals.
The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as
on 31.03.2021 was as under:

i.  Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee
ii.  Shri Praveen Saxena, Director
iii.  Shri R. K. Jain, Director

During the year, two Meetings of the Committee were held on 09.06.2020 and 13.1.2021. The
attendance of Directors in these Meetings was as under:

Date of the Meeting/ 9.6.2020

Name of the Member 13.1.2021
Smt. Renu Narang,

Chairperson of the Yes Yes
Committee

Shri R. K. Jain, Director Yes Yes
Shri Asit Kumar

Mukharjee, Director Yes Yes
(Member upto 28.02.21)

Shri Praveen Saxena

(Member w.e.f. 05.02.21) N-A. N-A.

C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The term of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in accordance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is as under:

(i) To formulate & recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, GOI;

(i) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities
referred to in clause (a) and approve the budget for CSR;

(iii) To monitor the CSR Policy of the company from time to time;
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(iv)  Shall institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the
CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken by the company;
(v)  Any other matter as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

The constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company as
on 31.03.2021 comprised 3 (three) Directors as under:

i.  Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee
ii.  Shri Praveen Saxena, Director
iii.  Shri R. K. Jain, Director

During the year 2020-21 no meeting of Committee was conducted.

D. Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee

The term of reference of Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee is for
allotment of Equity Shares from time to time.

The constitution of the Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee of
the Company as on 31.03.2021 comprised 2 (two) Directors as under:

i.  Smt Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee (wef 19.11.2019)
ii.  Shri R. K. Jain, Director

During the year 2020-21, 1 (One) meeting dated 9.6.2020 of the Allotment & Post-
Allotment Activities of Shares Committee. The attendance of Directors was as under:

Date of the meeting/ Name of the 9.6.2020

member

Smt Renu Narang, Chairman of the Yes

Committee

Shri R. K. Jain Yes
4. Remuneration Policy/ Detail of Remuneration to Directors

Since, the Directors are nominated by NTPC and Ministry of Railways, they are
governed by the remuneration policy as applicable to their parent organisations.

5. Performance Related Payment to Employees

As majority of the employees are on secondment basis from NTPC, their remuneration
is as per the rules of NTPC.

During the year, 30 Diploma Trainees are also recruited in the Company. They are
being regularised as per their recruitment rules.

Annual Performance Related Payment is decided by the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee based on the PRP decided by NTPC for employees on
secondment basis to its subsidiaries and joint venture companies.
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6. General Body Meetings

The attendance of Directors in Annual General Meeting held during the FY 2020-21 are

as under:
Date of the Meeting/ Name of the AGM
Director
Shri Ramesh Babu V, Chairman and Yes
Member
Shri R. K. Jain, Director Yes
Shri Praveen Saxena, Member and NA
Director
Smt. Renu Narang, Member and Yes
Director

The Chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee could
not be present in the Annual General Meeting. Other Members of the Committees were present
to answer the queries of the shareholders.

Forthcoming AGM: Date, Time and Venue

The 14t Annual General Meeting of the Company (AGM) is scheduled on 234 September 2021
at 3.00 P.M, at the registered office of the Company situated at NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex,
7, Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

Location and Time of the last three AGMs
The location, time and details of the special resolutions passed during last three AGMs are as

follows:
For the FY 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
AGM 11th 12th 13th
Date and 17.09.2018 30.07.2019 22.09.2020
Time 3:00 p.m. 5:45 p.m. 1:00 p.m.
Venue NTPC Bhawan, NTPC Bhawan, NTPC Bhawan,
SCOPE Complex, 7, | SCOPE Complex, 7, | SCOPE Complex, 7,
Institutional Area, Institutional Area, Institutional Area,
Lodi Road, New Lodi Road, New Lodi Road, New
Delhi-110003 Delhi-110003 Delhi-110003
Special - - -
Resolution
Passed
7. Means of Communication

The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report and
General Meetings.

8.  Disclosures
a.  Every Director of the Company had disclosed his nature of interest/ concern in

the company or companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of
individuals as required under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.
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b.  The Annual Financial Statements FY 2020-21 are in conformity with applicable
Accounting Standards. During the year, there have been no materially significant
Related Party Transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. The details of “Related Party Disclosures” are being disclosed in
Notes to the accounts in the Annual Report.

c.  The Company has a system in place for monitoring of various statutory and
procedural compliances. Further, a compliance certificate on applicable laws is in
place on yearly basis.

d. CEO and CFO of the Company, inter-alia, confirmed the correctness of the financial
statements, adequacy of the internal control and certified other matters to the Board
and Audit Committee, as per the requirements of Department of Public Enterprises
Guidelines.

e.  All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel are governed by the Code
of Conduct of NTPC Limited as they are nominated/ deputed by NTPC. The
affirmation to the Code of Conduct is given by Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel at NTPC.

f. The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in
place a mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company has
implemented Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) under which the employees
are free to report violations of applicable laws and regulations. No personnel have
been denied access to the Audit Committee.

g.  During the year under review, no Presidential Directive was received by your
Company. However, the Parent Company, i.e. NTPC received a Presidential Directive
for revision of pay of executives of the Company. The same was complied for the
executives of the Company who were on secondment basis from NTPC.

9. The information regarding shareholding pattern of Promoters and Directors is given
under Extract of Annual Return which is at Annex to the Directors” Report.

10. Training of Board Members

As the Board Members are the Nominees of NTPC and Ministry of Railways, they are
being imparted training by their parent organisations. Detailed presentations were
made by senior executives/ professionals/ consultants on business-related issues at the
Board/Committee meetings as and when required.

11. Location of Plant

Nabinagar Thermal Power Project (4x250 MW), Distt. Aurangabad, Nabinagar,

Bihar.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-
Place: New Delhi (Ramesh Babu V)
Dated: 23.09.2021 Chairman

DIN: 08736805
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Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) & Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certificarion

We, Pabitra Mohan Jena, Chief Executive Officer and Amarendra Kumar, Chief Finencial Officer
of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements, including all notes to the financial statements and the
cash flow statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and to the best of our knowledge and
belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(i1) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicakle laws and
regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year, which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s various code(s) of conduct.

(c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the company’s auditors and the Audit Committee of BRBCL's Board of

Directors:
(i) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
(ii) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and the same have

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and
(i) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

3 Yror

(Amareddra Kumar) (Pabitra Mohan Jena)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
AT W/AMARENDRA KUMAR 813
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A.K. Rastogi & Associates
——Company Secretaries—
Off.: 0120-4215991 Mob.: 96509904 14

RefNo........... Dared..ﬂ/.?ﬁ}.%ﬁ 2)
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF DPE GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 2020-21

The Members,
Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited,

We have examined the compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises, 2010 as amended from time to time and issued by DPE with respect to your company for
the Financial Year 2020-21

The compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance is the responsibility of managemeant. Cur
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for
ensuring the compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinicn on financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us by the
management, we certify that the company has complied DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance as
referred above during the Finangial Year 2020-21

We further certify that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For A. K. Rastogi & Associates

Company Secretaries

{Anil Kumar Rastogi)
Date ; Ist September 2021
Place ; New Delhi FCS no. 1748

CP no:i22973
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Annexure — Il to Director Report

Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return
as on financial year ended on March 31, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i)
i)
ii)

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company

U40102DL2007G0OI1170661

November 22, 2007

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited

Public Company / Government Company

NTPC Bhawan, Core 7, SCOPE Complex, 7,
Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
Ph. No.: 011-2436 0071

Fax No.: 011-24360241

iv)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company

v)  Address of the Registered office and contact details

vi)  Whether listed company Yes / No

vii)  Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent, if any

E-mail: amit1106.acs@ntpc.co.in

No
Not Applicable*

*Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited was appointed as RTA for shares of the Company in FY 2020-21

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SI. Name and Description of main | NIC code of the Product/service | % to total turnover of the
No. products/Services Company
1 Electric Power Generation by coal based thermal 35102 100%
power plants
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S.No. Name and address of the Company ICIN/GLN Holding/ EA» ofApplicable Section
Subsidiary/ hares
Associate held
1 NTPC Limited L40101DL1975G0I007966 Holding 74% 2 (46) of the
Address: NTPC Bhawan, Core 7, SCOPE ICompanies Act, 2013
Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi-110003

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

\U

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of shares held at the end of the year i.e (% Change
Shareholders year i.e 1.4.2020 31.3.2021 during the
year
Demat| Physical Total % of Demat| Physical Total % of
Total Total
shares shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)Individual-HUE
(i) As Nominee of NTPC| - 500 500 0.00 - 500 500 0.00 -
(ii)) As Nominee of - 100 100 0.00 - 100 100 0.00 -
Ministry of Railways
b)Central Govt. - 61,19,99,898 | 61,19,99,898 26.00 - 62,33,39,900 | 62,33,39,900 | 26.00 -
(Ministry of Railways)
c)State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -
d)Bodies Corp.




BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of shares held at the end of the year i.e (% Change
Shareholders year i.e 1.4.2020 31.3.2021 during the
year
Demat| Physical Total % of Demat| Physical Total % of
Total Total
shares shares
NTPC Limited - |1,74,18,44,115(1,74,18,44,115| 74.00 - |1,77,41,21,038 ( 1,77,41,21,038 | 74.00 -
e)Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1):- - 12,35,38,44,613 | 2,35,38,44,613| 100% 2,39,74,61,538 | 2,39,74,61,538 | 100%
(2) Foreign

a)NRIs- individuals - - - - - - _ B _
b)Other-Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any Other - - - - - - - - _
Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - _
Total shareholding of - 12,35,38,44,613|2,35,38,44,613| 100% - 12,39,74,61,538 | 2,39,74,61,538 | 100% -
Promoter
(A) = (A)(1) + A(2)

B. Public Shareholdin
1.Institutions
@)Mutual Funds - - - - - - - _ _
b)Banks/FI - - - - - - - - _
c)Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -
d)State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -
e)Venture Capital - - - - - - - - -
Funds
f)iInsurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g)Flls - - - - - - - - -
h)Foreign Venture - - - - - - - - -
Capital Funds
i)Others(specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B) (1):- - - - - - - _ N N
2.Non-institutions
a)Bodies Corp.
i) Indian - - - - - - - _ _
i) Overseas - - - - - - - - _
b)Individuals
i)Individual - - - - - - - - -
Shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto 1 lakh
i) Individuals - - - - - - - - -
shareholders
holding nominal
share  capital in
excess of X 1 lakh
c)Others(specify) - - - - - - - - _
Sub-total (B) (2):- - - - - - - _ N N
Total Public| - - - - - - - - -
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by - - - - - - - - -

Custodian  for

GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total - |2,35,38,44,613 |2,35,38,44,613| 100% - 12,39,74,61,538 | 2,39,74,61,538 | 100% -
(A+B+C)
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year
No. year i.e 1.4.2020 i.e 31.3.2021
No. of Shares |% of total| % of Shares | No. of shares % of total % of Shares |% change in the
Shares of| Pledged/ Shares Pledged / shareholding
the |encumbered to of the |encumbered to| during the year
company | total shares company| total shares
1. INTPC Limited 1,74,18,44,115 | 74.00 - 1,77,41,21,038| 74.00 - -
2. Ministry of Railways 61,19,99,898 26.00 - 62,33,39,900 | 26.00 - -

- Y /



3. |Nominees of NTPC 500 0.00 - 500 0.00 - -
4. |Nominees of Ministry of 100 0.00 - 100 0.00 - -
Railways

(iii)Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl Particulars Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative shareholding during the
No. of the year year
No. of shares % of total | No. of shares % of total shares of
shares of the the company
company
At the beginning of the year 2,35,38,44,613 100.00 2,39,74,61,538 100.00

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.):

At the End of the year 2,39,74,61,538 100.00 2,39,74,61,538 100.00

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl | For each of Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year  |during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the | shares | shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying - - - -
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat
equity etc.):

At the end of the year ( or on the date of separation, if separated during the - - - -
year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SI For each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the | Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding during
the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the [shares shares of the
company company

1. Shri Ramesh Babu V
Chairman &Nominee Shareholder of NTPC

At the beginning of the year 0.00 0.00 100 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying Nil 0.00 100 0.00
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer/ bonus /sweat

equity etc):

At the End of the year 100 0.00 100 0.00

2. Mrs. Renu Narang
Director &Nominee Shareholder of NTPC

At the beginning of the year 100 0.00 100 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer/ bonus /sweat

equity etc):

At the End of the year 100 0.00 100 0.00

3 Shri Praveen Saxena

Director &Nominee Shareholder of NTPC
At the beginning of the year Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying 100 0.00 100 0.00
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer/ bonus /sweat
equity etc): Shares transferred from Shri Asit Kumar Mukherjee, Director &
Nominee shareholder of NTPC.

At the End of the year 100 0.00 100 0.00

\Ua



BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD.

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrue but not due for payment

y

Particular Secured Loans Unsecured Loans [Deposits Total
excluding deposits Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 54,49,09,95,539 54,49,09,95,53
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 62,82,72,460 62,82,72,460

Total (i + ii + iii)

55,11,92,67,999

55,11,92,67,999

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

e  Addition

. Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal amount

53,21,42,29,064

53,21,42,29,064

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

35,44,99,383

35,44,99,383

Total (i + ii + iii)

53,56,87,28,447

53,56,87,28,447

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SI.  |Particulars of Remuneration
No.

Name

MD/WTD/Manager

of| Total
Amount

1. Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) if the Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Al

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

Remuneration to other directors:

SI. Particulars of Remuneration
No.

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1. Independent Directors

¢ Commission
e Others, please specify

e Fee for attending board / committeemeetings

Total (1)

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

e Commission
o Others, please specify

e Fee for attending board/ committee meetings

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1 + 2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

=Y /




C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CEO CFO Company Total
Secretary”

1. Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax

Act, 1961 74,63,069 65,40,413 1,40,03,482
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-

tax Act, 1961 1,64,779 1,47,697 3,12,476
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 0.00 0.00

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission - as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. Others, please specify

Total 76,27,848 | 66,88,110 1,43,15,958

Hwid

AAppointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. 30.10.2017. CS is posted at Delhi. Accordingly, salary is also being
debited at Delhi.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of theBrief description Details of Penalty /|Authority (RD/ Appeal made, if
Companies Act Punishment [{NCLT / COURT) any (give details)
Compounding fees
imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Ramesh Babu V)

Chairman

(DIN: 08736805 )
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 23.09.2021
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Annex-lV to Directors’ Report of BRBCL
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programs.

Keeping in view the size of the Company and manpower required for executing the CSR
activities, your Company has adopted the CSR policy of its holding company viz. NTPC
Limited.

The CSR Policy is formulated keeping in view the requirements of the Department of Public
Enterprises and the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR policy focused on Health, Sanitation,
Drinking Water, Education, Capacity Building, Women Empowerment, Social Infrastructure
Development, support to Physically Challenged Person (PCPs), and activities contributing
towards Environment Sustainability and other subject matter described under Schedule VII
of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The CSR Committee as on 31.03.2021 comprised Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of the
Committee , Shri Praveen Saxena and Shri R.K. Jain, Directors.

3. Average net profit (loss) of the company for last three financial years.

The average net profit (loss) of the Company for three immediately preceding financial
years i.e., 2017-18, 2018-19 & 2019-20 is % (51.94) Crores.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure.

As per requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend 2% of
the average net profit of the company made during three immediately preceding financial
years in CSR activities. As the average net profit (loss) of the Company for three
immediately preceding financial years was % (51.94) Crores, the Company is required to
spend NIL amount on CSR activities in the FY 2020-21. However, company has spent Rs
36.80 lakhs, under the head of CSR on various activities.

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2020-21:

(a) 2% requirement-provision for 2020-21 : -

(b) | provision already made, if any : -

(b) Amount unspent, if any : -

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during | : | Rs36.80lakh (Distribution of Solar Street light, Desk
the financial year and Bench, Ceiling Fan in school, Tri cycle,
Mosquito Net, and Umbrella in PAP Villages)

= Y /
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(1) 2) (3) (4) () (6) @) (8)
S.No | CSR project or activity Sector in Projects or Amount Amount | Cumulative Amount spent:
identified Which the Programs outlay spent on the| expenditure Direct or
Project is (1) Local area| (budget) | Projects or | upto to the through
covered or other Project or | programs reporting |implementing
(2)Specify Programs | Sub-heads: period. agency
the State and wise (1) Direct | (Amount in
the district | (Amount in | expenditure Lakh
where Lakh) on projects
projects or or programs-
programs was (2)
undertaken Overheads:
(Amount in
Lakh)
1 [Sports Activities Aurangabad 4.18 Distt Admn
2 PAPs BRBCL 32.37 42.40 Direct
3 |PAP Schools BRBCL 4.43 10.89 Direct
4 |Covid-19 Relief BRBCL 27.34 Direct
5 |PM CARES Fund 21.55 Direct
6 Others Aurangabad 1.82 Distt Admn

6. Reasons for not spending two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial
years or any part thereof.

there is no unspent amount under CSR for the FY 2020-21.

7. Aresponsibility statement of the CSR Committee

The Responsibility Statement of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is reproduced
below:

Place:

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, is in compliance
with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(P.M.Jena)
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-

(Ramesh Babu V)
CHAIRMAN
BRBCL, Nabinagar

Sd/-

New Delhi

Date: 23.09.2021

\Ua
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I}s A. KAUSHAL & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES
A-62, Basement, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110024

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, Scope Complex,
7, Institutional Area, Lodi Road,

New Delhi- 110003

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by “Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited”
(Corporate Identity Number U40102DL2007G0OI170661) (hereinafter called the
“Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited’s books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives,
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021,
according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Invesimient, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial borrowings;

iii)  As explained by the management, there is no law which is specifically applicable on
the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
(SS) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, etc. mentioned above except “Secretarial Auditor or his
authorised representative was not present in the Annual General Meeting of the Company.”

= Y /



Continuation page ...
A. KAUSHAL & ASSOCIATES

We further report that: -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with only Non-Executive Directors.
Company is exempted vide General Circular No. 09/2017 dated 5% July, 2017 to have
Independent Director(s) in its Board. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice has been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings during the
financial year under review, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent within timeline
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, we report that all the decisions are
carried unanimously. The members of the Board have not expressed dissenting views on any
of the agenda items during the financial year under review.

We further report that the systems and process in the Company to monitor and ensure the
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guideline, are commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company.

We further report that, during the audit period, the Company has not carried out any specific
event/action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules regulations, guidelines.

FOR A. KAUSHAL & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

T e

CS AMIT KAUSHAL
FCS- 6230, CP No.- 6663
UDIN: F006230C000762447

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATE: 10/08/2021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-I and
forms an integral part of this report.
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l}s A. KAUSHAL & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES
A-62, Basement, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110024

Annexure-1

To

The Members

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, Scope Complex,
7, Institutional Area, Lodi Road,

New Delhi- 110003

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Management of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Qur examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. We have tried to verify the physical records maintained by the Company to the extent
possible in order to verify the compliances, however, reliance was also placed on
electronic records for verification due to lockdown announced by Government of
India on account of COVID-19 pandemic.

FOR A. KAUSHAL & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

R =f<arnSs{
CS AMIT KAUSHAL

FCS- 6230, CP No.- 6663
UDIN: F006230C000762447

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATE: 10/08/2021

Page 3 of 3
Mobile : 9810050390, Phone : 011- 46074119, E-mail : aka_pcs@yahoo.com
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Rhartiva Tail Bijlee Company Limited
Regi. Ofifee: NTPC Blinwan, Seope Comples, 7, Institutionsl Aren, Lodhi Road, New Delli-1 10003

BALANCE SHEET A5 AT 31 MARUCN 202
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Chairman
Place:
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Blhareiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Reod, Office: NTPC Bhawun, Scope Complex. 7. Institutional Aves, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-11H0003

STATEMENT OF PROFIT ANDLOSS FORTHE YEAR EXDED 31 MR 2020

21 akhs
Iarticulars Nule No, For the sear cidal Fur the vear ended
A A1 Alarch 2071 A Viarel 2020
Hovenur
ey erue Irom vperafiong 4 LIEATT.2T LT RN
Diher incnine 25 451181 440,24
Total revenue 32314808 23341021
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Fuel expense (1 94.6TEGS 10851322
Emplovee benefits capense I 59117 TARLS]
Finanee cusis b 4067704 44,736,015
Depreciation, amar tisation amd impairment voponse .l ALAMIR Mo
Oliker exgirnses 0 (1158067 1190575
Total expenves 15997531 204.500,77
Profin belore fay AT 2530044
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Minjmum Alicrate Tax Eofittenaent Uis 11500 {50627} 2R 10
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Basie Farning Per Share (T) 142 123
Diluted Enrning Mer Share (2) i 142 137

e acvompant ing notes | i 49 form an integral part of these financial siatements,

For amd un behalfl of the loard of Dircetors

X A o sl

_pwiirendra Kumar P Jena R.K. ain
.5 LFEO C.EQ INreetor Chairman
Place: Pluce: Nabinagar Mlage:Nabinagar  Place: Place:

For Chamari & Co.
Chy

Sunit K{uar

Partner
Membership No. : 094316
Firm Reg. No.: $14619C
Place : Nabin .
Dated 1 L2N Te 2021

‘hamaria
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Ghartiya Kail Bijlee Company Limited
Regd, Office: NTIC Bhavan, Scupe Comples, 7. Institutional Area, Lodbi Rewd. Sew Delbi-1 13

STATEAMENT OF CHANGES 15 EQUULY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCI 02

1 %0 Eapaits share eaprital

Tur the vear enled 31 March 3021 { Lukha

Balance as ot | April 2020 A5 R440

Changes in cyquity share caplial during tie vear 4,361,609

Halance as ap 3 March 2021 139,746,158

For the vear enibeild 31 March 2020 2 Lukhs

Balange as an 1 april 2009 Im.!ﬂ.!ﬁ

Elianges in equiny share capital during ihe vear 10,211.21

Ialance as we M March 3020 2508446

(B Othier capuits

For the vear endesd 31 Mareh 2021 2 Lalis
[Farticulars Rrverves & Surplus

Miare application | Corporate saclal | Fiy ash utitisation | letained carning tatal
ey pemliing redponaibiling reserve fuml
allatment [HLTTRT

Ealanee as a0 M Mareh 2020 L6169 (i) [ ] R ETTITE JE R0 G

Profit/{Loss) for the year - - . g 34792 2R4T0

Crher comprehenidve inenime far the sear . E i s .

Sare application money reeciyveid - - % 4

Sharcs allotted against share upplication mone ERINEETT - . - [ER e

Tramsferred to My sl reserve - - (R ] . 1y

Transicr leom retalned carning N - (25,711.45) I5T104K)

Tramfer (o cetained caraing - - - .

Roumnding olf Adjuuinent » . (A2 g

Balance as a1 31 Marel 2031 {0 {1007 XiX3) d6.404.50 | 3067403

For the year endled 31 March 2000 1 akhs

Farticulars Reserves & Surplus

Share application | Eorporate social | Fly aah utilisation | Retaincd rarnings Yatal
muney pendig respansibility reserve fumd
allotrrent reserve

Balance as at 1 April 2019 1515914 AT 14747 EN1H.4K 0,160, 7h

Prafit/ {Lusy) fur the sear - - . 25 84600 LA FTRN]
hlier comprehensive fncanse for the vear . - 5 & .
share gpplication mancy reecivel 143570 - - - 1143876

Shares allonted agaionst share application mency LRV RI) = . (1280505

Transferrod 1o iy ash reserve . - 485,12 B 4R35

Framsfer from retained careing - L L] o (35.41) .01

Praifer to retained earnjog - (TO6%)Y - To.e8 -
|Heunding off Adjusmient {ILBLY (LAY
{Datanee a5 at 31 March 2020 436169 mwoml - (e L] 13.900,0% A0

¢
Vishal Garg A
L

Place:

For Chamaria &
¢

Sunil Kemar Chanaria
Partier

Membership Nu. ; 094310
Firm Reg. Mo 3146100
FPlace : Nabinapar

Dated : 44 Glune 2021
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Whartiva Rail Rijler Company Limited
Begd. Qffice: NTPC Bhawan, Seope Cumples, 5, Instioational Area, Lodbi Rood, New Delli-110003

STATEMENT OF Casll FLOW FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 MARCH 2021

2 1aklis

Partienlars For the ycar endgd For the vear ended

31 Alareh 2021 1 Mureh- 2020
A. Cash Flow Frum Operating Activitles
Frofic hefare tax R ik Aok IRA00.44
Al Net movements in rezulatory delereal accomst builusices {4563, 85) (L2026.07)

RHTER T 15.565.37

Adjusineent Tor
Depreciation and amortisation expense A 46018 11,270,604
Finanee eovis 4047129 44.594.38
Unwinding of discount on vendor alilies 20635 HLT?
Pravisions ereared during the vear 121167 7.53
Fly ash utilisation reseryve fund 149,54 445,31
Net movementy in regulatory deferral aecount halanees AB61.E8 12,936.07
Nel minemunts in regulatory delerral accouni alinees
pertaining to previows venr -
LPSC Charges (3.754.50) (3513.48)
Inferest lncome (rom bank deposion (585.21) {1.459.53)
Operating profit before working copital chunges LU2,3%0.5] LOL02E.AT
AdfEstment for -
e entory 974.98 (7027.64)
Trade receivahle A986.79 (4,969,532}
Bank balanees other than eash and eazh ciuivalent [26.1.59) TA00.67
ther finaneial assets (1 159.13) (447647}
Other current assets 1617 11.68
(ther nen current assers 102410 (936.9%)
Trade payables 275551 1.0331%
Otlier Duanciol Habilitics . 1826440 (477.50)
Cibier curvent liabilities U556 Tl 13
Peovisions (4335.01) {257.61)
Cash generated from eperations 1.34,521.16 90,334,320
Less: Ineome taxes paid 5,1581.47 1,284.00
et cash outNow from aperating aciivires Y] L2 364%.64 80,050,300
I Caish Flows From Investoient Activitics
Purchase of property plaot and equipment and capital work-fn-progress [I6,5997.74) (A7A4Y5.25)
LESC Charges recived X 727.24 1LE7R. 14
Teterest recived from bank 28531 145953
et cash vutllow fram fnvesting nctivites B [32.685.25) {44, 160.58)
C. Cash Flow From Finaneing Activities
Proceeds from share application money - 1143376
Froceeds from long term borrowings {00955 00 TAGE 1%
Biviilend Faid (25,713,458 3
Interest paid (43, 178.44) (H0,132.50) —
Netensh inlow Trom Nnancing seiivitics Il (109,479 03y (27.250,506)
Net increase/{deercasel in eash and cash equivalonts A+ 0] (1319247 17.639. 16
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of tlhe v JLALATE 13,674.62
Cashiand Cash equivalenrs at the cad of the year 18,118.31 Ji.'m.'.-a

PR A

e by
e Ml
- ] .
[ ' i
.I. ..II

| Ehann (M)

e O -

il i f
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"".-\I -

FS-BRBCL-31-3-2021 Page No.14

Y /7 /e



8} Cashoand eash cquivalents consist of halances with banks and deposits with eriginal miaturity of upto three months.

Bl Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cushoanil eash equivalent as per note § 18.118.31 301378

= Refor nnte na AY for details of undrann Bsorrowing facilitkes than may e available for futyre nprmtiu;: antivities amd te sonle capital commstments.

1 Heconcilintion hetween the opening and closing balawees in the balanee sheer fur Hahilites arising from finameing setivities:

L 1akhs
Pavticulars Non-current Current
- borrowings harrowings
For the year coded 31 Mareh 2021
Ratance a5 at | April 2020 44,500,945 =
Loan drawals (in cash) finterest acerned during the year 1540490 15000000
Loan repaymentsdinberest payement during e vear (in cashy L6623 12.66
Lews :Current Maturitics of Lung term Bareowings 1832033 -
Balance a5 ar 31 Maceh 2021 JELNIL0G 1.50.000.00
For the vear ended 31 March 2020
Ralanee as ar 1 April 2009 AT A4L48 %
Lean drawals (in cash) finterest acerned during the year 16,135.15
Loun repaymentsfinterest payment during the vear {in cosh) #.665.67
Ealance as a1 31 March 2030 5.44.909.906 =

There wre o nvn-vash changes on account of effect of changes in Tareign eachange rates and fair values.

For and on Lehalf of the Baard of Dircclars

Vishal Gurg .uua_;:-nflra Kumar * PN Jenn R dain
€S, N i A C.EO Dircetor Chalrman
Ilaves Plafe: Nahinazar Place: Nahinapsr Phace: Mace:

i

For Chamaria & Co,
Charrered Accouniants

Sunil Kumar Chamaris

7

Partner ? i)
Membership No, : 0943 16'% f:
Firm Reg, No.: $14619C | 4
Flace : Nabinagor -1
Dated : \gy g Jiidie 2021 “7,

k“gﬁx
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 1. Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting entity

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (the “Company™) is a Company domiciled in India
and limited by shares (CIN: U40102DL2007PLC170661). The address of the Company's
registered office is NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7 Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New
Delhi - 110003, The Company is involved in the generation and sale of bulk power to Indian
Railways and State Power Utilities.

B. Basis of preparation

1. Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the
extent notified and applicable) and the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent
applicable,

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 14.06.2021.

2. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds
received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected
to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

3. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ( ¥) which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in ( ¥ )} has been rounded to the nearest
lakh (up to two decimals), except when indicated otherwise.

4, Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is;
Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
= Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

FS-BRBCL-31-3-2021 Page No.16

Y /7 /e



Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

= (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-
current,

A liability is classified as current when:

»  Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
» Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
*  Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the Kability for at least twelve months
afier the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Dreferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

Assets and liabilities are classified between current and non-current considering 12 months
period as normal operating cycle.

C. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below, These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

The Company has elected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101 by not applying the provisions
of Ind AS 16 & Ind AS 38 retrospectively and continue (o use the previous GAAP carrying
amount as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1 April 2015.
Therefore, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as per the
previous GAAP as at 1 April 2015, i.e. the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS, were
maintained on transition to Ind AS.

1. Property, plant and equipment

1.1. Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably,

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes purchase
price including import duties and non-refundable taxes afier deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any cost directly atinbutable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the
present value of initial estimate of cost of dismantling, removal and restoration,

Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and
accumulated impairment losses,

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment that are significant in value and have
different useful lives as compared to the main asset, they are recognized separately.

Deposits, payments/liabilities made provisionally towards compensation, rehabilitation and other
expenses relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is vet to be
effected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the year
of final settlement.

Assets and systems common to more than one generating unit are capitalized on the basis of
engineering estimates/assessments.

Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on consumption.

The acquisition or construction of some items of property, plant and equipment although not
directly increasing the future economic benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant
and equipment, may be necessary for the company to obtain future economic benefits from its
other assets. Such items are recognized as property, plant and equipment.

1.2, Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable tha
future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it meets
the asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous
inspection and overhaul is derecognized.

The cost of replacing major part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the replaced part has been depreciated
separately. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

1.3. Decommissioning costs

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset afier its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

1.4. De-recognition

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected
from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on de-recognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined as the difference between sale proceeds from disposal, if
any, and the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

In circumstance, where an item of property, plant and equipment is abandoned, the net carrying
cost relating to the property, plant and equipment is written off in the same period.

L.5. Depreciation/amortization

Depreciation is recognized in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on the assets of the generation of electricity business and on the assets of Corporzte
& other offices of the Company, covered under Part B of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act,
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

2013, is charged on straight-line method following the rates and methodology notified by the
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) Tariff Regulations,

Depreciation on the following assets is provided on their estimated useful lives, which are
different from the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,
ascertained on the basis of technical evaluation/ assessment:

a) Kutcha roads 2 years
b} Enabling works
- residential buildings 15 years |
- internal electrification of residential buildings 10 years |
- non-residential buildings including their internal electrification, water 5 years
supply, sewerage & drainage works, railway sidings, aerodromes, helipads
and airstrips. _
c) Personal computers & laptops including peripherals. I 3 years
d) Photocopiers, fax machines, water coolers and refrigerators, | 5 years
e} Temporary erections including wooden structures. 1 year
f} Telephone exchange. 15 years

g) Wireless systems, VSAT equipment, display devices viz. projectors, screens, 6 years
CCTV, audio video conferencing systems and other communication
equipment,

'h) Energy saving electrical appliances and fittings.

2_-? years

Major overhaul and inspection costs which have been capitalized are depreciated over the period
until the next scheduled outage or actual major inspection/overhaul, whichever is earlier.

Right-of -Use land and buildings relating to generation of electricity business are fully amortized
over lease period or life of the related plant whichever is lower following the rates and
methodology notified by the CERC Tariff Regulations.

Right-of-use land and buildings relating to generation of electricity business which are not
governed by CERC tariff Regulations are fully amortized over lease period or life of the related
plant whichever is lower

Right-of -Use land and buildings relating to corporate and other offices are fully amortized over
lease period or twenty-five years whichever is lower following the rates and methodology
notified by the CERC Tariff Regulations,

Capital spares are depreciated considering the useful life ranging between 2 to 25 years based on
technical assessment,

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the vear is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the month in which the asset is available for use/sale,
disposal or earmarked for disposal.

Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to
increase/decrease in long-term liabilities (recognized up to3] March2016) on account of
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

exchange fluctuation and price adjustment change in duties or similar factors, the unamortized
balance of such asset is charged off prospectively over the remaining useful life determined
following the applicable accounting policies relating to depreciation/amortization.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the expenditure incurred will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequent expenditure
on a property, plant and equipment along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged
off prospectively over the revised useful life determined by technical assessment.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of assets other than the assets of
generation of electricity business governed by CERC Tariff Regulations, are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required.

2. Capital work-in-progress

Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as on
the reporting date, is classified under capital work- in-progress.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the borrowing costs
altributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they
are ready for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of
related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account
received from the contractors.

Unsettled liabilities for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted
for on estimated basis as per terms of the contracts.

3. Intangible assets and intangible assets under development
3.1. Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are
recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable expenses of preparing the
asset for its intended use.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured
reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic
benefits are probable and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or sell the asset.

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as
intangible assets under development till they are ready for their intended use.

3.2, Subsequent costs:
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it
is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

3.3, De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expecied from their
use or upon their disposal. Gain or loss on de-recognition of an intangible asset is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of intangible
assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.4. Amortization

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, is amortized on straight-line method over a
period of legal right to use or 3 years, whichever is less. Other intangible assets are amortized on
straight-line method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant, whichever is
less.

The amortization period and the amortization method of intangible assets with a finite useful life
is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required,

4. Regulatory deferral account balances

Expense/income recognized in the statement of profit and loss to the extent recoverable from or
payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations are
recognized as *Regulatory deferral account balances’.

Regulatory deferral account balances are adjusted in the year in which the same become
recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

Regulatory deferral account balances are evaluated at each balance sheet date to ensure that the
underlying activities meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with such balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are not met, the
regulatory deferral account balances are derecognized.

5. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as
described in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) interest expense on lease liabilities
recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116- ‘Leases” and (c) exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interes:
costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration’
development or erection of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until
such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets
which necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the borrowing costs incwrred are capitalized, When Company borrows funds generally and uses
them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is
computed based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that are outstanding during the
period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection of the qualifying asset.
However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements

obtaining a qualifying asset, are excluded from this calculation, until substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment made out  of the borrowings pending utilization for
expenditure on the qualifying assets is deducted from the bomrowing costs eligible for
capitalization,

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

6. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and non-moving items of stores
and spares is ascertained on review and provided for.

Steel scrap is valued at estimated realizable value,
7. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

8. Government grants

Government granis are recognized initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions
associated with the grant. Grants that compensate the Company for the cost of depreciable asset
are recognized as income in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the period
and in the proportion in which depreciation is charged. Grants that compensate the Company for
expenses incurred are recognized over the period in which the related costs are incurred and the
same is deducted from the related expenses.

9. Fly ash utilization reserve fund

Proceeds from sale of ash/ash products along-with income on investment of surplus fund are
transferred to ‘Fly ash utilization reserve fund’ in terms of provisions of gazette notification
dated 3 November 2009 issued by Ministry of Environment and Forests, Government of India.
The fund is utilized towards expenditure on development of infrastructure/facilities, promotion
& facilitation activities for use of fly ash.

10. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
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Notes to financial statements

pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle

the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
reimbursement, if any.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occunrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote,
Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent
experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgment of
management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements,

11. Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cuirencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date, Exchange differences arising on settlemen:
or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which it arises with the exception that exchange differences on long term monetary items related
to acquisition of property, plant and equipment recognized up to 31 March 2016 are adjusted to
the carrying cost of property, plant and equipment.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency which are measured in terms of historical
cost are recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. In case of advance
consideration received or paid in a foreign currency, the date of transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it), is when the Company initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration.

12. Revenue

Company's revenues arise from sale energy and other income. Revenue from other income
comprises interest from banks, employees, contractors ete., sale of scrap, other miscellaneous
income, etc.
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12.1. Revenue from sale of energy

The majority of the Company’s operations in India are regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003.
Accordingly, the CERC determines the tariff for the Company’s power plants based on the
norms prescribed in the tariff regulations as applicable from time to time. Tariff is based on the
capital cost incwred for a specific power plant and primarily comprises two components:
capacity charge ie. a fixed charge that includes depreciation, return on equity, interest on
working capital, operating & maintenance expenses, interest on loan and energy charge i.e. a
variable charge primarily based on fuel costs.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a customer or
is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognizes revenue when (or as) the
performance obligation is satisfied, which typically occurs when (or as) control over the
products or services is transferred to a customer.

Revenue from the sale of energy is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration was probable, the associated costs could
be estimated reliably, there was no continuing management involvement, and the amount of
revenue could be measured reliably. Revenue from sale of energy is accounted for based on tariff
rates approved by the CERC (except items indicated as provisional) as modified by the orders of
Appellate Tribunal for Electricity to the extent applicable. In case of power stations where the
tariff rates are yet to be approved/items indicated provisional by the CERC in their orders,
provisional rates are adopted considering the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Revenue from
sale of energy is recognized once the electricity has been delivered to the beneficiary and is
measured through a regular review of usage meters. Beneficiaries are billed on a periodic and
regular basis. As at each reporting date, revenue from sale of energy includes an acerual for sales
delivered to beneficiaries but not yet billed 1.e. contract assets/ unbilled revenue.

The incentives/disincentives are accounted for based on the norms notified/approved by the
CERC as per principles enunciated in Ind AS 115. In cases of power stations where the same
have not been notified /approved, incentives/disincentives are accounted for on provisional
basis.

Part of revenue from energy sale where CERC tarifi Regulations are not applicable is
recognized based on the rates, terms & conditions mutually agreed with the beneficiaries and
trading of power through power exchanges.

Exchange differences arising from settlement/translation of monetary items denominated in
foreign currency to the extent recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent
periods as per the CERC Tariff Regulations are accounted as ‘Regulatory deferred account
balances’ and adjusted from the year in which the same becomes recoverable/payable.

Exchange differences on account of wanslation of foreign currency borrowings recognized upto
31 March 2016, to the extent recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent
periods as per the CERC Tariff Regulations are accounted as ‘Deferred foreign currency
fluctuation asset” with corresponding credit to ‘Deferred income from foreign currency
fluctuation’. Deferred income from foreign currency fluctuation account is amortized in the
proportion in which depreciation is charged on such exchange differences and same is adjusted
against depreciation expense. Fair value changes in respect of forward exchange contracts for
derivatives recoverable from/payable to the beneficiaries as per the CERC Tariff Regulations,
are recognized in sales.
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Revenue from sale of energy through trading is recognized based on the rates, terms &
conditions mutually agreed with the beneficiaries as per the guidelines issued by Ministry of
New and Renewable Energy, Government of India.

Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early payment incentives are deducted from the amount of
revenue.

12.2. Other income

Imterest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exist, on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate, using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Scrap other than steel scrap is accounted for as and when sold.

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in the year of acceptance. Other insurance
clanms are accounted for based on certainty of realization,

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreement,

For debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the EIR, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement
of profit and loss.

The interest/surcharge on late payment/overdue trade receivables for sale of energy is recognized
when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists,

Interest/surcharge recoverable on advances to suppliers as well as warranty claims wherever
there is uncertainty of realization/acceptance are not treated as accrued and are therefore,
accounted for on receipt/acceptance.

13. Employee benefits

The employees of the company are on secondment from the parent company, Employee benefits
include provident fund, gratuity, post-retirement medical facilities, compensated absences, long
service award, economic rehabilitation scheme & other terminal benefits. In terms of
arrangement with the parent company, the company makes a fixed percentage contribution of the
aggregate of basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of service rendered in the company.
Accordingly, these employee benefiis are treated as defined coniribution schemes.

14. Other expenses

Expenses on ex-gratia payments under voluntary retirement scheme, training & recruitment and
voluntary community development are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year
incurred.
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Expenditure on research is charged to revenue as and when incurred. Expenditure on
development is charged to revenue as and when incurred unless 1t meets the recognition criteria
for intangible asset as per Ind AS 38- ‘Intangible assets’.

Preliminary expenses on account of new projects incurred prior to approval of feasibility
report/techno economic clearance are charged to statement of profit and loss.

Met pre-commissioning income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of related assets and
gysiems.

Transit and handling losses of coal as per Company’s norms are included in cost of coal.
15. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCI
or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expecled tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax bases of
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they materialize, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity,
respectively.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same
time that the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized. The income tax consequences of
dividends are recognized in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the Company originally recognized those past transactions or events.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set
off against future income tax liability. MAT credit is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future taxable
profit will be available against which MAT credit can be utilized,

When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses whether a tax
authority is likely to aceept an uncertain tax freatment. If it concludes that the tax authority is
unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of the uncertainty on taxable income, tax
bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is recognized. The effect of the uncertainty is
recognized using the method that, in each case, best reflects the outcome of the uncertainty: the
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most likely outcome or the expected value. For each case, the Company evaluates whether to
consider each uncerfain tax treatment separately, or in conjunction with another or several other
uncertain fax treatments, based on the approach that best prefixes the resolution of uncertainty.

16. Leases
16.1. As lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic

benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right
to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a comesponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(shortterm leases) and leases for low value underlying assets. For these short-term and leases for
low value underlying assets, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. Right-of use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is

reasonably certain that the option to extend the lease will be exercised/option to terminate the
lease will not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment losses and adjusted for any
reassessment of lease liabilities,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the commencement date to the end of the
useful life of the underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlving asset by the
end of lease term or if the cost of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase option will be
exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated /amortized from the commencement

date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
assel,

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-
inuse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows
that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, iF
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are re-measured
with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Company changes its
assessment whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.
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17. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS
36 - *Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less
costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the ‘cash-generating unit’, or
“CGU™,

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrving amounts of
the assets of the CGU.

[mpairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of accumulated depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

18. Operating segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are
identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s management to allocate
resources 10 the segments and assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively
the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker' or *CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS
108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with
performance assessment measures put in place,

19. Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes
in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors.

20. Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts
for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the
earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest
period presented, are restated.
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21. Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss atiributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number o
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively
for all periods presented for any bonus shares 1ssued during the financial vear.

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are also computed using the earnings amounis
excluding the movements in regulatory deferral account balances,

22, Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS
7 *Statement of cash flows’,

23. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entitv. The Company recognizes a financial
asset or a financial liability only when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument

23.1 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not valued at fair value through profit
or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortized cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met;

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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Debt instrument at FYTOCI (Fair value through OCI)
A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and
(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the OCL However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain
or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or Joss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCIL, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Interest income eon
such investments is presented under ‘Other income’,

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily de-recognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet)
when:

*The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

*The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. The difference
between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received/receivable is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits and bank balance.

(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCL

ic) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116,

(d) Trade receivables, unbilled revenue and contract assets under Ind AS 115,

(e} Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.
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() Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

For trade receivables and contract assets/unbilled revenue, the Company applies the simplified
approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires lifetime expected losses
to be recognized from initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, ina
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverls to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12Zmonth ECL.

For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, a loss allowance is recognized for
the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credited losses sinee initial recognition

23.2 Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial habilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value
through profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortized cost, as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of liabilities measured at
amortized cost net of directly attributable transaction cost. The Company’s fnancial liabilities
include trade and other payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:;
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is in¢luded in finance costs in the statement

of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings, trade payables and other
contractual liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit
risk is recognized in OCL These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

23.3 Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks of foreign currency
loans. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of derivatives are taken to statement of profit and loss.

23.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that may impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures concerning the items involved as
well as contingent assets and liabilitics at the balance sheet date. The estimates and
management’s judgments are based on previous experience & other factors considered
reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is as under:

1. Formulation of accounting policies

The accounting policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements
containing relevant and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions
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to which they apply. Those policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is
immaterial,

2. Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on a
number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and
the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the
asset,

Useful life of the assets of the generation of electricity business (where tariff is regulated) is
determined by the CERC Tariff Regulations in accordance with Schedule 1T of the Companies
Act, 2013,

3. Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on
estimates and assumptions regarding in particular the expected market outlook and future cash
flows associated with the power plants. Any changes in these assumptions may have a materia.
impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in impairment.

4. Revenues

The Company records revenue from sale of energy based on tariff rates approved by the CERC
as modified by the orders of Appellate Tribunal for Electricity, as per principles enunciated
under Ind AS 115, However, in cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates
are adopted considering the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations.

6. Leases not in legal form of lease

Significant judgment is required to apply lease accounting rules as per Ind AS 116 in
determining whether an arrangement contains a lease. In assessing arrangements entered into by
the Company, management has exercised judgment to evaluate the right to use the underlying
asset, substance of the transactions including legally enforceable agreements and other
significant terms and conditions of the arrangements to conclude whether the arrangement meets
the criteria as per Ind AS 116.

7. Regulatory deferral account balances

Recognition of regulatory deferral account balances involves significant judgments including
about future tariff regulations since these are based on estimation of the amounts expected to be
recoverable/payable through tariff in future.

8. Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’. The
evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events require best judgment by management
regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Should circumstances change following
unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

9. Income taxes

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

BEartiya Rail Bijlec Comgany Limited
Notes to the financlal statements (continued)

£ Other pon-current ssseis

Particulars As ol A al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered gpood
Covered by bank puarantee 2,329, /6 220
{Hhirs 2.170.87 2,034 65
4,70H.53 434887
Advances sther than capital advances
Advance tax and tax deducted & source 6,893,495 4,164 86
Less: Provisiom for tax 6.893.49 3,255 39
- an9.47
Tatal 4, TIN5 5,158.34
————

ap Disclosure with respect (o advances 1o related panies is made in noté 39

¢ Invenlories

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Coul 3,007.58 5.974.62
Fuzeld il 424,06 294 Al
Stores and Spures 4,086, 70 137376
Chemicals & comsumahles 154,38 161,60
Sieel 3131 190,81
Looss tools 44.47 1078
Crhers 147913 1.280.98
Sulb Total 9,230.43 10,114.15
Less: Provisson for shoriages. W1.26
Total 003917 10,114.15

4} Above figures includes Materinl in Transit. Detatls of miaterial in transit a5 on reporting date a3 bebow,

Coal 265,69 Bos.54
Fuel oil 0.00 £1.78
Stores aml spares 624,31 1:0,5%
Clremicals & consumables 0,04 41
Chthers 5.08 .29

3} Other mochedes electrical consumables

2] Refer note 15 for informeation on inventory pledged as security by the company.

1) Paragraph 32 of Ind AS 2, ‘Inventories” provides that materials and other supplies held for wse i the production of inventories are not weitten
down below cosl if the fnished products in which they will be incorporated are expecied to be sold a1 or above cost The Company is operacing
in the regubstory ewviranmient and as per CERC Tarfl Regulations, cost of fuel anc other iventory items are recoversd ad per extant tarifd
regulations. Accardingly, the realisable value of the inventories is not lower than the ¢ost

e} Invemtory recognised as expense during the vear;

Particutars For the year caded For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fuel Expense 0467865 1.08,513.22
Others (recognised in other expenses) 2,720.92 2.576,79
Tatal 97.390.57 1.11,080.01
T Trade recelvables

Particulars Axat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade receivables {unsecured, considersd pood) 30,583.37 3454256
Tatal 30,583.37 34,542.56

a} The econpany’s exposure o credit risk is disclosed in note 33,
ah Refer note 39 for related party disclosures

=) Trade receivable also meludes LPSC receivable,
5 Cash and eash equivabents

Particulars Az al As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balances with banks
Current acgoumts 10587 2145215
FS-BRBCLE=#34:3:2024Page NodQ=c months (including interes accrued) 17,722.18 G.560.43
Cheques on hamd = 1.4
Oihera (stamps in hand ) wis 020

Y /7 /e
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

% Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As ot As af
31 March 2021 A1 March 2020
Dreposits with original matunty of more tan theee months and matanng within one {000} (0,043
year {chling futerest accrued)
Margin money against letter of credit isaued 1o vendor (including imicrest ncorued ) 3z 305.03
Eamminrked balance for My nsh utilizaton reserve fund R17.48 459,64
Interest scorwed on deposiis 6.17 117,83
Tatal 1,147.39 85150
10 Other Anancial assels
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 20Z{
Ulnbilled revenue {unsscured, considered pood ) 21572 56 143357
Dty - other service 20,04
Tl 21,502.42 20,433.47
) Unbilled revenue represents nmount billed 1o the beneficiaries after 31 March for energy sates;
) The company's exposure 1o credit risk is disclosed in note 13,
11 Oiher current assets
Particulurs As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deposits with Government Authorities 4,153.97 4,450,602
(hher recoverable 2,787.74 1,831,580
Unsecured Advances
Employecs 3.80 11.63
Contractors & supplicrs G.AT0.24 4,332.70
Others 433,42 441.74
Total 1384917 11.068.81

ap Chher recoverable ingludes amount recovernble from Raitways wwards ABT meters & Freggha & from Nabinagar Pewer Generating Company

Limited towands freight changes, supply of steed e,
b} Other advances represents insurance premium paid in advance.

12 Regulatory deferral sccownt debit balances

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

U secount of
Exchange differences 3583 57441
Deferred 1ax . .
Total 65583 57441

a) CERC Tanfl Regulations, 2019 provide for grossing-ugs the rmee of retum on equity based on effective ax rate for the financial year based on 1he
actual tax paid doring the year on the genermtion income. Aceordingly, deferred taox Bability will be reversed in future vears when the related DTL

formis part of curren tax,

Hitherto the Company was disclosing tax expense recoverable from the beneficiaries as & deduction from tlve rebated tax expense, Further,

*Deferred asset for deferred tux lnbility’ was hitherto disclosed as a deduction from the DTL (net) of the Company.

During the vear, the EAC of the 1CAT has tzswed am opinion with regard to presentation of *Deferred asset for the deferred wx liabilin, wheren
it hias opined that *Deferred asset for DTL is in the nature of n *Repulatory Deforral Account Balance' and should be shown as ‘Begulmory

deferral account balance”,

Considering the EAC opinion, *Deferred nsset for the deferred wmx liability which was hitherto shown as & deduction from "deferred 1ax

labilitics (net) has been transferred 1o ' Regulmory deferml sceount debit balance”

b1 Reguluory deferral account halances have been accounted in line with Acemmiing policy ne. €4 (Note 1), Refer Note 42 for detailed

disclosures,

FS-BRBCL-31-3-2021 Page No.41
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Bhartiya Rail Bi_lee Company Limited
Notes to the finpecinl statements (continued)

13 Equity share capital

! Lakhs
Particulors As at 31 March 2021 As ut 31 March 2020
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Autharised
Equity shares of par value 2 1 (- cach 2.50,(60,00, (41 150,000, 1,50, 00,04, 000 2,50, 000,00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up !
Equity shares of par value 2100 cach 2,39.74.61,534 1.39,746.15 235 1844.613 135384 46
1) Movements in equily share cupital:
% Lakhs
Particulars For the vear ended3] March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Numbecr of Shares Ammisunt Number of Shares Amount
Opening balance 1353844613 23518446 2161532 490 216,15325
Shares issued doring the year 4.36,16,5925.00 436068 19,23,12,123.00 183121
Closing balaace 2.39,74.61,534 1.38.746.15 1353844613 13538446

b} Terms and r-ghis attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one elass of equity shases having 2 par value F10/- per share, The equity shareholders are entitled 1o receive dividends as declared from time 1o time
and are entithed 1o voting rights proportionate to their shane holding at the mestings of sharcholders, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity
shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining nssets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential smounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.
¢} Dividends 1 Lakhs
Particulars Paid During the year ended
3 st Muorch, 2021 31 March, 2020
(i} Dividends paid and recognised during the year
Final dividensd for the vear ended 31 March 2020 of Rs. 0.58 per shave (3150 March 20019: Mil) 13713458 4
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of Rs. 0,50 per share lakhs 315t March 2020: 1 200,00

d) Details of shareholders holding mare than 5% shares tn the Company:

Particulurs As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Number of Shares " Number of Shares "

NTPC Lud. 1,77.41,21,538 74,00 L7418 44615 T4.00

Mimistry of Railways 62, 53.40,000 26,00 61,19.99.998 26,00

14 Other equity

Particalars

Asat 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Share application money pending allotmen 4,361,609
Corporate social responsibility reserve (refer note 383 - -
Fly ash unilisation reserve fund §32.53 633,19
Retaied eamings 3643450 33 900,08
Tuotal 37.267.03 IRAM.9

al Share applicathon maney pending allatment
During the financial Year company has alloted 43616925 no of Shares 1o NTPC and Ministry of Railways in the ratio of 74:26, The halance shares are likely 1o b allotted in
the next finorcial year. The authorized share capital of the company is sufficient to cover the dlizre capital amount on allotment of shares out of the above share application
money. No amount is refundable out of above share application money and no interest is payable, Share application maney pending for allatment , has been received from
NTPC Limited ¥ Mil Lakhs (Previous year T 3227.69 Lakhs) and Ministry of Railways 2 Nil Lakhs (31 March 2020; 2 113400 Lakhs)

Reconciliation of share application money pending allotment Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 Muarch 2020
Opening balance 436169 12,159.14
Add: Share application money received during the vear - 11,433.76
Lazss; Shanes allotted against share application money 4,361.69 19,231.21
Closing bulamce (LELT] 4.361.69
b1 Corporate social responsibility reserve
Reconciliation of corporate social respansibility reserve For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 Murch 2020
Opening balance = 3527
Add: 1 : - 3541
(e FOBRBCL:31:5:2021 Page No.42 : ot
Clusing balance = -

C5R expenditure for FY 2020-21 is Rs36.80 Lakhs.
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Ntes te the financial statements (cantinued)
14 Oiher equity (continued)

) Fiy ash utilisation reserve fund
Pursiant to Gazette Motification dated 3 November 2009, issued by the Ministry of Environment and Forest (MOEF), Goverroment of India {GOT), the amoani collected from
sitle of fly ish and {y ash based products should be kepd in a sepamte account head and shall be uilized only for the development of infrasmactune or fctlity, promotion &
[acilitation activities for wse of fly ash until 100 pereent fly ash. utilization level is achieved. The fund balance has been kept in "Bank Ralances other than cash & cash

equivalents' (Mose 9,

Recansiliation of fly ssh utilisation reserve fund For the vear ended Far the vear ended
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 63319 14787
Add: Transferred duning the year:
Revenue from operations 208.19 45063
Lezs: Untlised during the vear:
Oher expenses 545 531
Closing halanee R31.53 63319
di Retalned corniigs
Reconciliation of retnined earnings For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 33,900,058 §015.45
Add: Profit! {Losz) for the year from Statement of Profit and Loss 3824792 25.846.33
Less: Fimal Dividend paid for 2019-20 13,713.48
Interim Dividend paid for 2020-21 1 2,000,000
Less: Transfer io corporate social responsibiliy reserve = 3541
Add: Transfer from corporate social respansibility Teserve . Th68
Rounding off adi [0.02)
Closing balnnce 36,434.50 33 900.08
15 Borrowings
Particalars Asat Ax af
31 Murch 2021 31 Murch 2020
Secured term loans
From hank
Rupee loars 22027436 2,49, 19134
From financial institution
Rupee loars 165412492 3.02.001.34
3,85,68728 5,51,192.68
Lesse Interest Acerued bl not due on Secured bomowings 334499 615272
Less :Current Maturities of Long term Bemowings
Secared tern: leans
From bank
Rupee loans 16658 34
From Mnancial institution
Fupee loons 1156789 -
28,110.33 -
Total 3,53.921.96 544.909.96

&) The company hed an initial term loan facility of 23,74,675,00 Lakhs (FFC ; $ 2,24,800,00 Lakhs + Bank of Baroda: £ 1,45,875.00 Lakhs}). The company has fully utilised the
barrewing linait. Interest on FFC term loan & payable st the apphicable three vear "AAA™ Bond yield rate plus agreed margin nnd for Bank of Baroda it i3 one month bank
MCLR plus applicable margin, The Moratorum period for the project as per the boan documet is over and repavinent of Principal has been staned. . The repayment schedule
i for a period of 13 years, in 60 quarterly iestalments with effect from 30 Sepsember 2019 for Bank of Barodn and with effect from 151h April 2020 for FFC, The term loan
was seeured by equitable mongagchypothecation of @1 present and Tuwee fixed ad movable sszets of Nabinagar TPP (45250 MW}, as first charge, ranking pani pasu with
charge created with PFC and wath Bank of Baroda.

Druring the FY 2019-20, 2 pant of term loan from PFC ol T 1,00,000,00 Lekhs has been transferred to Canara Bank. The term Toian is secured oa pari passu basis on the project
agzets (Linits - 140 IV). The erm loan is repavable in 60 equn] quotterly instaliments with effect from 30 September 2019,

During the year, a part of Term Loan from PRC of 2 1,.20,000.00 Lakhs has been transfemed to Canam Bank, The generi] purpose loan & secured on pan passu basis on the
project assets. The loan has bullet rpavinent upto one year from the date of drawal.

b) The company has 2nd term loan agreement of € 2532500 Lakhs from PFC, The company has fslly wilized the borrowing limil. The intered mie on this Bicility Is @ 9.36%
poa. with repayment schedube of 15 years, beginning from 1 5th Apeil 2020, in 60 quarterly instalments.

¢} The company has taken drd term Joan of ¥ 1,5%,860.00 lakhs o PFC, The coupany las winl drwn 215087634 Lakhs from this facility of loan d11 the reponing date.
The irderest rte on this facility is @ 9.36% p.a, with repayment schedule of 15 vears, in 60 quarterly instalments beginning from 1 5th April 2020,

¢} Connrs Bank has sancticosd a borrowing limit of @ 20,000.00 Lakhs {fund based Hmit incloding noo-fund based sob limin of T 7,500,060 Lakhs) (31 Mlarch 2020; 3000000
Lakhs (fond based limit including non-fond based sub limit of 2 10,000.00 Lakhs))k The Company have availed non fund based limit of 2 6808 Lakhs for issue of Bank
Guraniee and Letter of Credit, The sanctioned limit is secured by way of first charge on trade receivables and inventores ind second charge on tangible fixed nssets,

€} Thete has been no defaulls in repayment of the loan or interest thereon as at the end of the yvear,
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Bliartiya Rail Bijiee Company Limited
MNotes ta the finsrcinl statements (confinaed)

16 Ovher Nnancal Kabilitics

9

Particulars

As al
31 March 2021

As at
31 Maorch 2020

Payable for capital expenditure
Todnl outstanding dues of micro ind small entesprises

100881

Towl outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 550,52
Total 550.51 18R]
o) Payable for capizal expenditiore represents liability towards equipment supplicr and ercction vendars pending evalustion of performance and gunrantee test results,
b} Refer node 39 for related party disclosures.
ch The company s expasure to-cumency amd liquidity nisks related to above fnancial liability is disclosed in note 33,
d} Detniled disclosures as required under MSMED Act, 2006 is made in note 41,
17 Deferred tax Asset (nef)
Particulars Asal As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deeferred wx Assel
Uinabsorbed depreciation 94,268,597 3,400, 40
Difference in tax profic and proft as per MAT 875206 374579
Lesss: Deferred tax Tiabiliry
Difference in book depreciation and tax depreciation 84 560063 73,730,383
Less; Deforred 2y asset
Unabsorbed depreciation
[¥ifference in tax profit and profit as per MAT
Totul 18,460.39 13,515.10
) Refer note 37 for disclosure related to income fax,
b) Deferred tax essets and deferred tx liabilities have been offsct as they relate to the same governing laws,
¢} Movement in defered tax balances
Particulars Dpening balance Recopnised in profit
o lass
For the year enided 31 March 2021
Diefierred tax labiline
Diffetente in book depreciation and tax depreciation T3,730.38 10.530.25
Less: Deferres fax asset
Linabsorbed depreciation 83,459.69 10,769.28
Difference in tax profiv and profit as per MAT 3,745.79 5,006,27
’liali‘ﬂ! 54!9-'55.}1}!
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Deferred tax ability
Difference in book deprecintion and tax dépreciation 55.27T0.36 18 460.02
Less: Deferred tax asset
Ungbsorbed depreciation 54,331,066 19, 167.03
Difference in tax profit and profit os per MAT 937,70 280809
(0.0 (13:515.10)
Borrowings
Particulars As ut As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Term Loan { Secured Loan- from canom hank) 15000000 -
Paripassu first charge on Fived Assets of the eompany & Fist change on entire curment Assets,
150, Db 00 =
Trade payables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Trade payable for goods amd services
Total outstznding dues of micro and small enterprises BB3.89 469,51
Total outstznding dues of ereditors other than micro and small enerprises 15.511.21 13,119,758
Tatal 16 375.10 13,589.26

a) Refer note 39 for related party disclosures.
b} Detniled disclosures as required under MSMED Act, 2006 is made in note 41.
¢} The company's exposure to liquidity risks related to trade payable is disclosed in note 33,
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Notes wthe linancial statements (cantinued)

20 Driher Mnancial labilities

Particulars Asat Mg mi
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Pavable for capitad expenditure
- mikcro and small enterprizes TES.12 R35.91
~-other than micro and small enlerprises A, 16,08 43 152,79
Interest aconzed but not due on bomowings 3.544.99 528272
(xher payables
Diepozits from comiraciors 1323 29,03
NTPC Lid 2,047.07 L
Pryable to employees 174581 S1L.11
nhers 94,08 9293
Bk Overdmft 025 356.80
Secured term loans
From bank
Rugree louns 1o 65854
From financial institution
Rupee loans 11,561.99
Total 76,706,544 A6, 99281

) Payable fiw capital expenditure represents liability towands equipment supplier and erection vendors pending evalustion of performunce and guaraistes 126t results.

b Detailed disclosines as required ander MSMED Act, 2006 is made in note 41,

¢} Oiher payables - others include towards Material Received. admimsiration expenses payable etc.

dj The company’s exposure o currency and liquidity nsks related to above financial Hability is disclosed in note 33,
e} Refer note 39 for related party diselosures,

21 Ovher eurrent Habilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Tax deductest a1 source and other statutory dues 0.73 a0

Advances from costomers and others 121.68 13155

Oithers (includes moterial received on loan) 63.19 65.19

Income Tax Payable (net of advance Tax) 972.T0

Total 1,163.30 20584

22 Provisions

Farticulars Axat A at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Provisions for obligntions incidental to Land acquisition 16,224.50 16,685.84

Provision for beave encashment 25.58 £.65

Prowision for Arbatrator Case B3 :

Shortages in property, plant and equipment pending investigation 6.3

Totul 1745115 16,694.4%

a} Reler note 40 for disclosure as per Ind AS 37 on *Provisions, Constingent Liabilities and Coatingent Assetz’,

11 Regulatory deferral acceunt ereidit balances

Particulars As al As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

O account ol
Exchange differences 3 .
Deferred tax 18,460.39 13,515.10
Tatal 1846039 13,515.10

a) Regulatory defermi) account halances have been scooumed in line with Accounting policy no. C.4 (Note 1), Refer Note 43 for detailed disolosures,

b CERC Tarifl Regutations, 2019 provide for grossing-up the rmte of retum on equity based on effective tax mate for the financial vear based on the actual tax paid during the
year on the peneration income. Accordingly, defered tx lability will be reversed in future yéars when the related DTL forms part of current tnx,
Hitherto fhe Company wes disclosing tax expense recoverable from the beneficiaries as o deduction from the related tax expense. Further, “Deferred asset for defemed 1ax
Tiability" was hitherto disclosed as o deduction From the DTL (net) of the Company
During the vear, the EAC of the 10AT hos issued on opinion with egard to presentation of *Deferred asset for the deferred mx liabiline”, wheremn ot bas opired that *Deferred
asset for DTL s in the nature of 2 *Regulatony Delfeormal Account Balance' and should be skown as *Regulatory deferral account balance”.
Considering the EAC opinion, *Déferred asset for the deferred tax ability! which was hithero shown a5 5 deduction from ‘deferred tax Habilities (neth has been transfermed o
*Regulatory defomal account dehir balance’.

FS-BRBCL-31-3-2021 Page No.45

e\




BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Motes to the financial statements (continued)

24 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Energy sales 2,18.617.27 2.29360.97
Sale of fiy ash 194,29 4T7.11
Less: Transferred 1w fly ash utilisation reserve fund 194,29 477.11
Other operating income
Interest from customers - &
Tatal 1,18,617.27 2,29,360.97
a) Energy sales are net off rebite to benehicianes amounting to Bs 415 Lakhs (31 March 2020: 2 -171.08 Lakhs)
b} Refer note 46 for detailed disclosure in respect of revenue from contract with customers,
25 Other income
Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Interest from

Deposit with banks 585.23 1,459,353
Advance to contractors . -
Income tux relumds 9243 -
Deposits with banks-Nlyach wiilisation reserve fund 1391 13.52
Less: wanslerred 1o fyash wtilisation reserve fund (13.21) (13.52)
Oiher non-operating income
Late payment surcharge from beneficiarics 3.754.86 251348
Profit on disposal of propenty, plant and equipment - 0.01
Net gain in foreign currency transactions and translations -
Provigion writlen back -
Insurance Claims .
Miscellaneous income (refer note below) 98,29 E9.53
4,530.81 4,062.55
Less: Transferred to expenditure during construction period (net)- note 31 - 12.31
Total 4,530,851 4,050.24
a) Miscelloneous income includes income from rent received, other Mise receipts etc.
26 Fuel Expense
Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended

31 Margh 2021

31 March 2020

Q&M-Cons-Coal { Ind) 92.928.97 1.06,751.87
Cons-LDO (Ind) 1,749.69 1,761.35
04,678.65 108.513.22
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Motes to the financial statements {(continued)

17 Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Salaries and wages £717.77 6, T10.59
Contnibution to provident snd other funds 1,598,106 143254
Staff wellare expenses 911.56 §62.82
11.227.4% 9.005.95

Less: Allocated w fuel cosi 2048 95.75
Less: Trunsferred 1o fly ash utilisation reserve fund - g
Less: Transferred 10 expenditure duning construction period (neth- note 31 |50 84 142560
Tatal 9,507.17 748451

a) In sccordance with Accounting Policy no. C.13 (note 1), an amount of Rs 1241 21 Lakhs (31 March 2020; ¥ 117374 Lakhs) towards provident fund,
pension, gratuity, post retirement medical facilities & other terminal benefits and Rs 353,65 Lakhs (31 March 2020: 2 25712 Lakhs) townirds leave &
other henefits, are paid /payable  the holding company (NTPC Lid) and included in ‘Employee Benefits'

b In sccordance with Accounting Policy no, C.13 (note 1), an amount of NIL Lakhs (31 March 2020; % 1,67 Lakhs) towards provident fund, pensio,
gratuity, post retinement medical facilities & other twrminal benefits and T NIL{31 March 2020; % Mil) towards leave & other benefits, are gaid /payable
1o the other promoting pariner { Indian Railways) and included in ‘Employee Benefits'.

28 Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Muarch 2021 31 March 2020

Interest on financial liabilites measured at amortised cosi

Rupee term loans 46.532.11 51,148.45
Unwinding of discount on vendor Liabilities 206.35 141.77
Cash credit account 302 4.67
Interest an Income Tax 358 21.25
46,802.06 51,316, 14

Other borrowing cost {refer note a bielow) 3,804 00 3,540,040
50,696,006 54,856.14

Less: Transferred 1o expenditure during construction period {net)- note 31 10,018.42 10,119.99
Tuotal 40,677.64 44,736.15

a) Term loan from PFC amounting to ¥ 120000 Lakhs has been transferred to Canara bank. Company has paid prepayment charges off € 3.8%4.00 Lakhs.

2% Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
O property, plant and equipment- Note 2 33,023,860 283
On intangible assets- Note 4 5.68 1.83
3300955 3283354
Lezz: Allocated to fuel cosy 1,507.95 1,507.95
Less: Transferred o expenditure during construction period (net)- note 31 5242 54.95
Total 3146918 31,270.64
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

30 Other expenses

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Power charges (net of recovenies) T4.81 16541
Water clinrges L 696,31
Stores consumed 143.62 8.95
Repairs and maintenance
Buildings 280.66 134.87
Plant &Machinery 6,541 46 5388.72
Others 120937 160229
Lond dispztch center charpes 5257 T5.50
Insurance 038,15 974,02
Rates&: Taxes 3033 26.21
Training & recruilment expenses 358 13.32
Communication ¢xpenses 11822 22299
Infand Travel 373.34 5020
Foreign Travel B -
Tender expenses (net of recoveries) {0.23) {0.52)
Payment to auditors 6.62 21
Advertiserent and publicity 16.55 11.89
Security expenses 2,154.61 1.,636.22
Entertainment expenses 97.88 §7.62
Expenses for guest house (el of recoveries) 78.62 6,24
Ash Utilization Expenses E&S 531
Professional charges and consultancy fee 415.65 40227
Legal expenscs 5185 110,52
EDP hire end other charges 2.00 1.54
Primting and stationery 423 1502
Hire charge of vehicles 16845 194,64
Net logs in foreign curreéncy ransactions and translations Bl.42 79,02
Transport Vehicle anning expenses 663 4.83
Horticulture Expenses T9.18 05,03
Hire charges- helicopterairerall. - 1457
Hire charges of construction equipment 0,92 266
Corporate social responsibility expense 16.80 T0.77
Miscellaneous expenses 361.37 511,22
1462583 13,572.03
Less: Allocated to fusl cost 1.051.13 662,37
Less: Transferred to expenditure during construction period (net)- note 31 1318 -
Less: Transferred 10 1Ty ash utilisation resérve fund L85 ] |
Tuotal 13,552.67 12,905.25
a) Miscellancous expenses includes Bank charges, provisuion for Shortage, power trading Exp etc.
b} Dhetails in respect of payment to suditors:
Statwory andit fee 235 [.%6
Tox audit Tee 040 03
Oiher services (certification fee) - -
Reimbursement of expenses 3.38 0.05
Fetmbursement of GST/service tax 0.50 022
Total .61 .79
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Motes to the financial statements (contimued)

31 Expenditure during construction period (net)

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A. Employee benelits expense

Saluries and wages I,166.02 1,012 08
Contribution to provident and other funds 243.60 26359
Seaff welfare expenses 100.22 149.12
Total {A) 150984 142560

B. Finance costs

Interest on
Rupee term loans oRI207 9.978.22
Lnwinding of discount on sceount of vendor linbilities 206,35 141.37
Total (B) 10,018.42 10,119.99
C. Depreciation and amortisation 5242 24,95

0. Generation, administration & other expenses

Power charges ‘ z
Water charges - =z
Rent - -
Repairs & mainienance
Buildings =2 =
Machmery = =
Others 1318 -
License Fee -
Communication expenses - =
Travelling expenses > =
Security expensas = =
Entertainment expeises - -
Books and periodicals . £
Professional charges and consultancy fiee % =
Legal expensics -
EDP Hire and other charges - -
Printing and stationery = i
Hiring of vehicles . -
Bank charges - -
Miscellanoous expenses - .
Total (I} 1318 -

E. Less: Qther income

Conlractors B _

Miscellaneous mcome 12.31
Total (E) - 12.31
Grand total (A+B+C+D-E) 11,593.86 11.588.32

* Carried to Capital worlein-progress - (note 3)
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Motes to the financial statements (continued)

32 Fair value measurements

a) Financial instruments by category
All financial assets and liabilitics viz. cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than eash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
unbilled revenue, term loans, payable for capital expenditure, rade payahles, interest acerued on borrowings, employee related liahilities,
payable to related parties, deposits from contractors and suppliers and payable for expenses are measured at amortized cost,

b} Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised
and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements,

Level 2 % Lakhs
Financial instruments which are measured at amortized cost for which fair As at As at
vilues are disclosed 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial linbilities:
Rupee Term Loan 4,05011.67 540089 858
Payable for capital expenditure 665.33 1074.65
Tatal 4,05,677.00 5.50.104.53

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are ohservable, the instrument is included in level 2,

¢} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

¥ Lakhs
Fair value of financial linbilitics As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
measured at amortized cost Carrying amount Fair value Carrving amount Fair value
Rupete term loans 3,82.142.29 4,05,011.67 544,909 96 549 (89 KR
Payable for capital expenditure 04,50 665,33 1.215.16 1.074.65
Tuotal 3.82.851.80 4.05,677.00 5.46,125.12 5,50,164.53

The carrying amounts of short term cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
unbilled revenue, trade payables, interest accrued on borrowings, employee related liabilities, payable to related parties, deposits from
contractors and suppliers and payable for expenses are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for Rupee term loans and payable for capital expenditure were caloulated based on cash flows discounted using & current
lending rate. They are classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs,
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Motes to the financial statements (continued)

33 Financial risk management
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans in domestie currency and payables for capital expenditure. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company s pringipal fnancial assets include cash at bank and depasiis
with bank.
The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments;
- Maorket risk
- Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
This note preseats information about the Company™s exposore 1o each of the gbove risks, the Company’s ohjectives, policics ard processes
for measuring and managing risk.

Risk management framework

The Company's activities makes it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adeguate measures to address such concems by
developing adequate systems and practices. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of markets
and seeks 10 manage the impact of these risks on the Company s financial performance.

Thie Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment ind oversight of the Company”s risk management framework,

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and o moniter tisks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company”s activities,

a) Market risk
Marked risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as [oreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company s incoms or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return, The Board of directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures w
manage market nsks of the company.

Intercst rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from long tam borrowing with floating interest rate. The Company is exposed o
interest rate risk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowing will fluctuate with changes in interest rate.

Refer note 15 for interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing Gnancial instrument at te reporting date.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A change of 100 basis paints in interest rates af the reporting date would have increased (deercased) equity and profit or loss by the amounis
shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the previous

VEar.
2 Lakhs
Particulars Profit (Loss)
104 bp increase 100 bp deerease
Rupee term loans
Faor the vear ended 31 March 2021 (5,189.2% 5.189.29
For the vear ended 31 March 2020 (4.845.17) 4.845.17

Currency risk

The Company executes import agreements for the purpase of purchase of capital goods. As per the CERC regulations. the gain/loss on
account of exchange rate variations on &ll long term and short term foreign curmency monetary items (up to COD) is recoverable from
beneficiaries. Henee, the impact of strengthening or weakening of Indian rupee against USD and Euro on the statement of profic and loss
would not be very significant.

The currency profile of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as below:

T Lakhs
Particulars
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Payable for capital expenditure
usD 155.34 238.63
ELURQ 5.017.44 7.166.96
Total 517278 740559
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Motes to the financial statements (continued)

33 Financial risk management (continued)

b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligatons resulting in a financial loss o the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, loans & advances, cash & cash
equivalénts and deposits with banks and financial institutions,

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue

The Company primarily sells electricity to bulk customers comprising, mainly railways owned by central povernment and state electrical
utilities owrned by State Government, The risk of default in case of power supplied to these state owned companies is considered to be
insignificant. Unbilled revenue primarily refates to the Company’s right to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting
date and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of contracts.

A defanlt occurs when in the view of management there is no significant possibility of recovery of receivables after considering all available
options for recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents and Deposits with banks
The company has banking operations with State Bank of India and Canara Bank which are scheduled banks. These banks have high credit
rating and risk of default with these banks is considered to be insignificant,

(i) Exposure to credit visk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum eredit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date

wis:
T Lukhs
Particulars
Asat As at
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Lifetime Expected
Credit Losses (ECL)- Simplified approach
Trade Receivable 30.,583.37 34.542.56
Other financial assets 21,592.62 2043347
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected
Credit Losses (ECL)
Cash and cash equivalent 18,118.31 31.313.78
Other bank balances 1,147.39 882,50
Total TL441.69 87,172.31

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected eredit losses

The company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low,
Hence besed on historic default rotes, the Company believes that, no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of above mentioned
financial assets,

Financial assets for which loss allowanee is measured using life time expected credit losses

The Company has customers (Railways and state government utilities) with capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of defaull
15 negligible or nil. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in
full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. Henee, no impairment loss has been recognised
during “he reporting periods in respect of trade receivables,

(iii) Ageing analvsis of trade receivables

¥ Lakhs
Particulars
Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
<180 days past due 30.583.37 33,099.70
=180 days past due - 1,442.86
Tutal 30.583.37 34,542.56
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MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

33 Finsncial risk management (continued)

¢} Liguidity risk

Ligquidity rigk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated wilh its financial liabilities that are
sottled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach 1o managing hiquidity is w ensure, as fur as-possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity 1o meet its liabilitics when due, under both nommal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage 1o the Company’s repatation,

The Company bas an appropriate ligquidity risk management framework for the management of short, medium and fong term funding and
liguidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity visk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borevwing fecilities by continwously monitoring forecast and actual cash fows and matching the matrity profiles of financial assets and
liabdities. ]
The Company's treasury depariment is responsible for managing the short tem and long term liguidity requirements of the Company.  Short
terme liquidity situation is reviewed daily by Treasury, The Board of direciors has established policies to manage hguidity sk and the Company's
treasury department operates in ling with such policies, Any breaches of these policics are reported to the Board of Directors. Long term liguidity
posizion is reviewed ona regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken sceording to the situation.

Typeally the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, including
the servicmg of finuncial obligations, this excludes the potential impaet of exreme circomstances that connot reasonnbly be predicted, such as

natural disasters.

(i} Financing arrangements

The company had aceess w the following undrawn borrowing facilities a the end of the reponing period:

¥ Lukhs
Pariculars
As at
Asat 31 March
31 March 2021 2020
Flozting-rate borrowings
Term kuns - 7.983.66
Warking capital limit 13,19200  24.225.00
{if) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the contractusl maturitics of non-denvative financial liabilities, based on contractual cash fows:
As atdl March 2021 T Lakhs
Parziculars 3 months or | 3-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 Total
less YEArs
Rupes Term Loan-from Banks 4. 164.75 1.62.494.25 16,659.00 42.977.00 1.36979.36 37027436
Rupee Term Loans -from athers 2,890.50 5.671.50 11,562.00 34,686,00 1,04,057.93 161, 867.93
Trade Payables 1637510 - - - - 16,375.10
Payable for Capim] Expendinre® 40,822 22 . T04.41 5.09 = 41,531.72
Intesest accrued but not due on - - - - - -
bomowings- Banks
Intezest acerued but not due on 3.544.99 - - - - 3.544.99
bomowings-others
Dieposits from contractors and others 73,23 B - - - 73.23
Payable 1o NTTC 204707 - - = 2.047.07
Pavable o emplovees 1, 74581 - - - 1,745.81
(Mhers 4,08 - - - = 9408
Total T1757.75 | 1,71,165.75 28.915.41 B4.668.09 241.037.29 | 59755429
As at 31 March 2020 2 Lakhs
Particulars 3 months or | 3-12 months 1-2 vears -5 vears More than 5 Total
less Years
Rupee Term Loan 0.197.04 27.593.82 36,79L.76 1,10,37527 3.60951.18 5.44,909.97
Trade Payables 13,758.35 = 247 13,760.82
Payable for Capatal Expendinure® 43,069.44 1.012.52 44,081 .96
Imterest acerued but not due on 6.282.72 6,282,72
boreowings
Deposits from contractors and others 2903 2004
Payable wo refuted parties 6,431.51 6,431.51
E y 1 w491 204.91
FSBRECLH1 52021 Page Nols3 |1, |, i
Total T9.800.03 27,593.82 37.806.75 1,10.375.27 3,60,951.18 6,16,527.05
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Motes to the financial statements (continued)

34 The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from bunks and other pamies. There are no unconfirmed balances in
respect of bank accounts and borrowings from banks & [nancial institutions. In addition, reconciliation with bereficiaries and other custemers is
generally doue on guarterly basis. So far as trade’other payables and loans and advances are concerned, the balance conlirmation letiers with the
negative assertion as referred in the Standard on Auditing (SA) 505 (Revised) “External Confirmations’, were sent t the partics. Some of such
balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if any will be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which in the
opinion of the management will not have a material impact. In the opinion of the management, the value of assets, other than property, plant and
equipiment, on realisation in the ondinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet.

35 Disclosure as per Ind AS 21 *The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’
The amount of exchange differences (net) recognised as loss in the Statement of Profit & Loss is £ 81,42 Lakhs (31 March 2020: ¥ 579.02 Lakhs),

36 Diselosure as per Ind AS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs®
Borrowing costs capitalised during the yearis 2 1001842 Lakhs (31 March 2020: 2 101 1999 Lakhs)

37 Income taxes

a) Income tax expense

¥ Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current tax expense
Current year 5,859 80 5.068.29
Pertaining to Previous year {3.71) 426.04
Pertaining to regulatory deferral accounis {849 82) (2.260.19)
(A]) 5,006.27 3,1M.14
Deferred tax expense .97 (10, 707.00)
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Less: MAT credit entitlement {5,006.27) (2808.100
Total deferred tax expense (B) (4,945.30) {13,515.10)
Income tax expense (C=A+B) 60.97 (10,280.96)
Pertaining to regulatory deferral account balances
Total tax expense including tax on movement in regulatory deferral account
halances 607 (10,280.96)
b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Tndia’s domestie tax rate
¥ Lakhs
Particulars For the vear ended For the yvear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profil before tax including movement in regulatory deferral account balances IR.674.33 15,565.37
Tax using the Companys domestic tax rate of 17.472% (31 March 2020 - 17.472%) 5.0H00.98 2,719.58
Tax effect of:
Mon-deductible 1ax expenses B8.5]
Tax-exempt income =
Forcign exchange difTerences .
Adjusiment on aecount of restatement 0
Previous vear ti liahility (3.70) 426.04
Mimimum alternate tax adjustments (5,006.27) (2.808.10)
Dieferred tax Asset 6097 {10,707.00)
Total tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 60.97 (10.280.96)

¢} The company has recognized deferved 1ax liability after adjustment of depreciation difference likely 1o be reversed during the tax holiday as Unit | of
the company is eligible for wx holiday w's 80LA of Income Tax Act, 1961.

d} The Company hns recognised defierred tax asset of ¥ 494530 Lakhs, consisting of MAT credit of 2 500627 lakhs and reversal of Deferred Tax
Assetof 2 6097 lakhs on account of unabsorbed depreciation of 2 174.48 lakhs recognised in previous vears,
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Motes to the financial statements (continued)

38 As per Secuon |35 of the Companies Act, 20113 read with puidelings ssued by Department of Public Enterprizes, GO1, the Company i required to
spend, in every Anancial year, at feast two per cent of the aversge net profits of the Company made dunng the three immediately preceding financial
years in secordance with its C5R Policy. The dewils of CSR expenses for the vear are as under

1 Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Amiouni required to be gpemt during the vear = 35.41
Amount spent during the year™ 36,50 70.68

*Amount spent on distnbution of 0 eyvele, solar street light, umbrella, mosquito
nets, beneh and desk in school,

30 Related party disclosures

a) List of related parties:
(i) Parent compuuny:
NTPC Limiled

[ii) Enmtity having significant influence:
Minisuy of Railwiys

(i} Key managerial personncl (KMT):

Shri Ramesh Bebu W ( woef. 18-Aug-2020) Mon-executive Director
Shr AK. Gupta (upte 17t Aug-2020 MNon-excoutive Director
Shr BK. Jain (w.ef. 18-Jul-18) MNon-executive Director
Shri Praveen Saxena { wee £ 05-March-2021 ) Hon-executive Director
Shri Asit Kumar Mukherjee ( upto 28-Feb-2021) Won-exeoutive Director
Shri 5. Narendra {uplo 30-Apr-2020) Non-exeoutive Director
Ms. Renu Narang (w.e.f 01-Sep-2019) Mon-executive Director
Shri P M Jeena [ w.e £.01-Jun-2020) Chiel Executive Officer
Shri C Sivakumar (upto 3 1-May-2020) Chicf Excoutive Officer
Shri Amarendra Kumar (w = £ 13-Jan-2021) Chief Finance T Rcer
Shri Mangj Srivastava (upio 07-Jan-2021) Chief Finance Officer
Shri Vishal Garg [w.e.f 30-O¢t-17) Company Secrelary

{iv) Joint venfure of parent company:
Utility Powertech Lid

{v) Entities under the control of the same government:

The Company & a subsidiery of Central Public Scotor Undertaking (CPSU ) controlled by Central Government by holding majority of shares (refer
node 135 Pursunnt 1o Paragraph 25 & 26 of Indian Accounting Stendard 24, entitics over which the same government has coatrol or joint conrol of,
or significant influence, then the reporing entity and other entities shall be regarded as related paries. The Company hias applicd the exemption
availahle for government related entities and have made limited disclosures in the financial statéments. Such entities with which the Company has
significant trunsactions inclede bul not limited 10 Central Coallields Lud, BHEL Lud., SAIL Lud., Indian Ol Corporation Lid, Bharat Petrolzum
Comporation Lid., NBCC Lid, PGCIL, Rites Limited, etc.

b} Transactions with the related parties are as follows:

¥ Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(i) Transaction with pareat company NTPC Limited
Consaltancy services received 62022 392,54
Equity contribution received ] 5299.77
Equity shares isswed 322789 1423110
Deputation of Employees 1.856.13 1712.35
Final Dividend paid for 200920 10147.98
Interim Dividend paid for 2020-21 8BE0.00
(it} Transaction with entity having significant influence- Ministry of Railways
Sale of encriry 1.98,374.68 1.96.830.44
Euguity: contribution receivid 6,134.00
Equity shares issued 1,134.00 5,000,123
Deputatinn of Emplovess 0 28,29
Final Dividend paid for 2019-20 3565.50
Interim Dividend paid for 2020-2] 312000
(i} Compensation to key managerial personnel
Shont term employes benefits 14316 99,27
FPost employment benelis 45.00 35,82
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Related party disclosures (continued)

¥ Lakhs

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2021

For the vear ended
31 March 2020

(iv) Transactions with joint venture of parent company

Utility Poweriech Lid (Operation and maintenance services) 1.858.06 168110
(v) Transactions with the related partics under the contral of the same government
BHEL Lid (Procurement & erection of plant & machinery) R38O 669930
Rites Limited {deposit Work for Coal transporiation system ) 92.16 261751
Power Grid Corporation OF India Lid {transmission charges paid) 209642 3.882.07
National Buildings Construction Corporation Ltd (civil constniction) TI7T.88 1,649,17
The Oriental Insurance Company Lid (insurance services) 047.20 969,10
Cemral Coalfields Lid (purchase of coal) 62,073.14 73,739.33
Hindustan Petrolewn Corporation Lid (purchase of fuel) 92734 194.16
SAIL Lud (purchase of capital goods) 765.72 R75.98
BEML Lid {purchase of capital goods) TH.26 283.36
Indian Oil Corporation Limited {purchase of fuel) T25.50 686,87
HMT Machine Tools Limited {purchese of capital goods) 202,49
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited {purchase of fuel) £64.33 1,240.53
MSTC LTD (consultancy services) B35 5.31
Outstanding balances with related parties are as follows:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount payable to parent company- NTPC Lid 2471.99 6,431.51
Amount payable 1o joint venture of parent company- Utility Powertech Lid 192,12 334.50
Amount receivithle from Mimistry of Railways for sale of energy 26,070.04 20,262.74

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties

(1) Transuactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates,
(i} The Company is assigning jobs on contract basis, for sundry work in plant o M/s Utility Powertech Lid (UPL), a 50:30 joint venture between
WNTPC Limited and Reliance Infrastructure Lid. UPL inter-alia undertakies jobs such as overhuuling, repair, refurbishment of various mechanical and
electrical equipments of plant, The Company has entered into Power Station Maintenance Agreement with UPL from time to time. The rates are fixed
on cost plus basis after mutual discussion and afier taking mio account the prevailing market conditions.

{iii) NTPC Limited is seconding its personnel 1o the company s per the terms and conditions agreed between the companics, which are similar to
these applicable for sccondment of employees 1o other compunies and institutions. The cost incurred by NTPC Limited towards superanmuation and

employee benefits are recovered from the company,

Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’

Movements in provisions: T Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provisions for obligations incidental on land acquisition
Carrying amount ot the beginning of the vear 16,685.84 16,943.25
Add: Additions during the year - 0.20
Less: Amounts wsed during the year 461,04 257.61
Carryving amount ot the end of the vear 16,224.80 1668584
Provisions for leave encashment T Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended

For the vear ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provisions for leave encashment
Carrying amount al the beginning of the vear §.65 1.02
Add: Additions during the year 16,93 7.63
1IFS-BRBEL-31-8:202 Rage No.56 i )
Carrying amount at the end of the vear 25.58 §.65




EAEEERE EEN AR SR AP EL Lo UREEERELEET SRR o

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Provision for Shortages in property, plant and eguipment £ Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Provision for Shortages in property, plant and equipment
Carrving amount a1 the beginning of the year . -

Add: Additions during the vear 603 -
Less: Amounts used during the year = =
Carrying amount at the end of the vear 003 -

b) Provision for obligations incidental 1o kand acquisition includes expenditure on rehabilitation & resettlernent (R&R) including the amounts payable w
the project affected persons (PAPs) towards land, expenditure for providing community facilities and expenditure in connection with environmental
gspects of the project. Company hos estimated the provision based on the Rehabilitation Action Plan (RAP) approved by the hoard/competent
authority, The outflow of said provision is expecied 1o be incurred fmmediately on fulfilment of conditions by the land oustees’ receipts of directions
of the local/ government authorities,

¢} Sensitivity of provisions
The assumptions made for provisions relating 1o current period are consistent with those in the carlier years. The assumptions and estimates used for
recognition of such provisions are gqualitative in nature and their likelihood could alter in next Mnancial year, 1t is impracticable for e company to
compute the possible effect of assumptions and estimates made in recognizing these provisions.

40 Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (continued)

d) Contingent liabilities
CAPITAL WORKS

(i) The work *Contract for Electrical equipments supply & erection package’ was gwarded 10 a contractor. The Contractor demanded comaensation of
3,29.57,995/- on sccount of extended stay, overhead expenses and reimbursement of expenses incurred for establishing Temporary structure for
beyond the original contract period. As per the company's contention claim is not tenable.

(i) The work ‘Contract for Air Conditioning System Package' was awarded o a contractor. The Contractor demanded compensation of 2
6,92,54.304.93/- from BRBCL on account of supply of material /Erection & Installation / Escalation towanls supply works carried out further after
expiry of contraciual period. Additional cost incurred during prolongation period of more than 4 years and Invocation and encashment of performance
Bank Guarantees and interest there on for beyond the original contract period. As per the BRBCL contention claim is not tenable.

{iii} The work Contract for Coal unloading and Transporiation was awarded to a Contractor. During the execution of work the agency has quoted lower
rate in nzw open tender process, During the contract period the Contractor had not made payment 10 sub vendor's dues. As per reques: of sub vendor
withhold (he final bill of Contractor by BRBCL and in this bill BRBCL prepared DI in favour of Agency. Same was intimated the Agency. Mow the
agency has filed a claim of T 4,26 87,476/~ in arbitration, As per BRBCL contention claim 15 not tenable,

{iv) The work 'Contract for Ash Water Recyele System: package” was awarded 1 o contractor, On failure 1o honour the contract leading o inordinace
delay in compeletion of contract, BRBCL had invoked Contract Performance Bunk Gumntee and Advance Bank Gurantee as per contract terms. The
Contractor has gone for arbitration invoking arbitration under general condition of contract. The Contractor demanded compensation of
4,16,66,989- on account of Encashed Bank Guruniess, Contraciual retention money, overhead expenses, Loss of profit etc . As per the company's
eontenticn claim is not tenable.

TAX AUTHORITIES

(v} Demand notice received for VAT from the Commereial Tax Office, Aurangabad, Bihar for 3 4827518/~ on sccount of tax, penalty and interest
under the Bihar VAT Act. 2005 for the FY 2015-16 on 25th April 2017, Memorandum of appeal Glled by company on 3rd December 2019 with
Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Patna & the case is under consideration,

{vi) Notice received for entry tax from the Commercial Tax Office, Aurangabad, Bihar by which depariment claimed that company has purchased Iron &
steel from outside the state using D-1X form of tal ¥ 13,62,60,197/- for financial year 2016-17 & 2017-18. While company his paid entry wx @5%
on iron & steel purchased of twetal 2 39,89,09,912/-, notice has been served o consider entry 1ax @ 8% as per rule 17 of entry tax acttix payable on
electrical goodsimplements apparus and applisnee including electrical fittings and all other machineries device used in generation of elecinicity
Considering all the aforesaid notices. Continget liability for differential entry tax work out o be ¥ 1,38,79.491. This matier is pending al
DCCT, Aurangabad,

(vii] A demand-cum-show cause notice ref ¥i(15)254/SCN/BRBCPL/ ARG/ Gayw/20-21/261 d1,13.03.2021 from the Assistant Commissioner, CGST & CX,
Diviston-Gaya received in which an amount of Rs 43,111,838/ (owards short payment of Service Tax on various services has been demanded fior the
Financial Year 2015-16. A reply alongwith supporting documents has been sent to the Assistant Commissioner appealing that service tax due on the
captioned services has been Tully paid and hence the demand is not tenable;
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Bhartiva Rail Bijlec Company Limited
MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

iviii) A demend-cum-show cause notice refl C.No V{15255 SCN/BRECPL-2/Abd/'Gaya/20-21/288 d1.18.03.2021 from the Assistant Commissioner,
CGST & CX, Division-Guya wis received in which an amount of Rs.27.30485/- wwards short payment of Service Tax on various services has been
demanded for the Financial Year 2006-17. A reply alongwith supporting documents has been sent 1o the Assistant Commissioner appealing that
service tax due on the captioned services has been fully paid and the demand is not tenable.

{ix) Notice received from the Joint Conunisioner of State Tax, Aurangabud Cirele, Aurangabad levying 3 times of applicable VAT on Rs.4,18,72,238/-
for the wransactions against issue of Form D-X. In reality, the transactions considered by the Tax Authorities are of the Plant & Machineries senl
outside Bihar for repair work which have been retwmed 1o the Company afler repair.  As such, no levy of tax is to be consdered on these
transuctons.  Considering the fuct, an appeal has been made on 03.03.2021 not to levy any tax/penalty in the matter. Approx VAT amount comes 1o
Rs.66,44 B36/-,

DEMAND BY NGT

{x} Environmental Compensation liability of Es 6,08, 13,0000 for non compliance of environmenial norms. Based on the National Green Tribunal (NGT)
order Thermal Power Stations are reguired to meet the environment norms of Ash Utilisation, for non compliance of Ash Utilisation norms the Power
Stations are rquired to pay environment compensation cess.

41 Information in respeet of micro and small emerprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

¥ Lakhs
Particulars As al As al
31 Muarch 2021 31 March 2020

a) Amoonnt remaining unpaid to any supplier;
Principzl amount 1,649.02 1,305.42

Interest due thereon

b} Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along-with the
amount paid to the suppliers beyond the appointed day.

e} Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withou
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

d) Amount of interest accried and remaining unpaid

e} Amount of further interest remaining due and payahle even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprises, for the purpose of disallowances as a deductible expenditure under
Section 23 of MSMED Act

42  Disclosare as per Ind AS 116 "Leases®
{A) Transition to Ind AS 116
at On transition to Ind AS 116, Lease hold Land amounting to * 73.04 Lakh have been reclassified and presented as Right-nf-uce nssels us on
01.04.2019

b} Leases previously accounted for as operating leases:
The Company recognised shori-term leases with lease terms that end within 12 months of the date of initial application,

i. Leases as lesscee:
The Company does not have any significant leasing armangements,

a) The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: (¥ Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31
March 2021
Expense relating to short-term leases .23
Depreciation expense for right-of-use assels 3.28
Total Amonnt recognised in profit & Loss 10.52

¢) The following are the amounts disclosed in the cash Aow statement:
Particulars For 31st March 2021
Cash Qutlow from leascs 7.23

43 Regulatory deferral nccounts

a) Nature of rate regulated activities
The Company is mainly engaged in generation and sale of electricity. The price to be charged by the Company for electricity sold to its customers is
determined by the CERC which provides exicnsive guidance on the principles and methodologies for determination of the tariff for the purpese of
sife of electricity. The taniff is based on allowable costs like interest, depreciation, operation & maintenance expenses, efe. with a stipulated retarn,

%—m%ﬁ?gfﬂwgl kﬁg\«g‘ne%%-gmvi:e regulations which provide the Company to recover its costs of providing the goods or services
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Motes to the financial statements (continued)

b} Recognition and measurement

As per the CERC TanfT Regulntions; any gain or loss on account of exchange nsk variation during the construction period shall form part of the
capital cost till the declaration of Commercial Operation Date (COD) 1o be considered for calculation of tariff. Accordingly, exchange difference
arising during the construction period 1% within the scope of Ind AS 114,

In view of the above, exchunge differcnces arsing from settlementttanslation of monetary item denominated in foreign currency 1o the extent
recovernble from or payable W the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations are recognized on an undisccunted basis as
‘Regulatory deferral account debiveredit balance” by credit'debit 1o ‘Movements in Regulatory deferral aceount balances” during consiruction period
and adjusted from the year in which the same beoomes recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

o) Risks associated with future recovery of rate regulated asseis:
1) demand risk due to changes in consumer attitudes, the availahility of aliemative sources of supply
i} regulatory risk on account of changes in regulations and submission or approval of a rte-setting application or the entity’s assessment of the
expected future regulatory actions
i) other risks including currency or other market nisks, if any.

d} Reconciliation of the carrving amounts:
Regulatory asset'{ lighility) recognized in the books to be recoversd from or payable 1o beneficiaries in future periods are as follow:

1 Lakhs
Particulars Asat As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening regulatory deferral account debit/{credit) balance (12.940.68) {461}
Addition during the vear (4,863.88) (12,936.07)
Recovery | payment during the vear

Closing regulatory deferral account debit/(eredit) balance (17,804.56) (12,940.68)

*Ahove balances have not been discounted

43  Repulatory deferral accounts (continued)

d) Tax expense(zaving) penaining o regulatory deferral account balances (549.82) (2.260.19)

¢} The Company expeets to recover the carrying amount of regulatory deferral account debit balance over a period of 10 years.

44 Capital management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability fo continue as @ going coneern, so that it can continue to Jrovide returns
fior sharcholders and bencfits for other stakcholdérs and maintain an appropriate capital strecture of debt and equity,
The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain o strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prodent management of
deployed funds and leveraging opporiunitics in domestic and internotional financizl markets =0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the buginess,
The Company monitors capital, using o medium term view of three to five years, on the basis of a number of financial ratios gererlly used by
industry and by the rating agencies. The Company is nivt subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
The Company monitors capital using geaning ratio which is net debt divided by ttal equity. Net debt comprises of fong term and short term
borrowings less cash and cash eguivalent, Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed as capital. The geaning ratio at the end of
the reporting periods was as Tollows:

T Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Total liabilities 5.35,687.28 5.51,192.68
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 18.118.31 31.313.78
Net debt 5,17.568.97 519, 878.90
Total cquity 2,77,013.18 21.74279.42
Net debt to equity ratie 1.87 1.90

45 Earnings per share
I Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Profit attributable to equity shareholders [A]

From operations including regulatory deferral account balances 28,247.92 2584633
Less: From repulatory deferral account balances (5,713.70) {12.936.07)
From operations excluding regulatory deferral account balances 33,961.62 38,782.40
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Motes to the financial statements {continued)

]

cl

46

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earnings per share [B]
Opening balance of issued equity shares

Effect of shares issued during the yvear, if any

Weighted average number of equity shares

Basic earnings per share [A / B)

From operations including regulatory deferral sccount balanges
Less; From regulatory deferral sccount balances

From operations excluding regulatory deferral account balances

Diluted carnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earnings per share |C]
Opening balance of issued equity shares

Effet of shares issued during the year, if iny

Weighted average number of equity shares

Diluted carnings per share [A / C)

From ¢perations including regulntory deferral account balances
Less: From regulatory defermal account balances

From cperations excluding regulatory deferral account balances

MNominal value per share (in )

Final Dividend

2351844613 2,16,15,32.490
3,28.62.066.78 3003501500
2.38,67,06,680 2,19,16,67,605
1.1% l.18

{0.:24) {0,59)
1.42 1.77
2353844613 2160532490
32862066.78 3013511500
2,38,67,06,680 2,19,16,67,605
1.1% 1.18

(0.24) (0.59)
1.42 1.77
[ h00 1006

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 14.06.2021 declared final dividend of Re 20.00 Cre for FY 2020-21 in addition to Interim devidend of

Rs. 12006 Cr already paid Tor Y 2020-21 subject to approval of Shareholders in the next AGM.

Eevenae from contracts with customers

a) Nature of goods and services
The Company is involved in the generation and sale of bulk power o Railways and state power utilitics, In the opinion of the management, there is
only one reportable sepment (“Generation of Electricity™). Sale of electricily is genernlly made purswant o long-term Power Purchase Apreements

b

c)

(PPAs entered into with the beneliciaries,

Mature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms

The Company recognises revenue from contracts for energy sales over time as the customers simullaneously receive and constame the henefits
provided by the Company. The tanf¥ for computing revenue from energy sales is determined in terms of CERC Repubations as notified from time to
time. The amount of revenue recognised for energy sales is adjusted for varishle consideration, wherever applicable, which are estimated based on
the historical data available with the Company. The smounts are billed on o monthly basis and invoices are payable within contractually agreed credil

period.
Disaggregation of revenue
In the fellowing table, revenue is disaggregated by customer and tming of revenue recognition:
% Lakhs

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Customer
Railways 1.98.374.68 1.96,830.44
Others 20,242.59 32,530.53
Tatal 2,18.617.27 2&9_13&0.9?'
Timing of revenue recognition
Over time 2.18.617.27 2.20.360.97
Al o point in time 0 0
Total L18.617.27 2,29.361.97

* The Company has initially Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated,

Contract balances

Contrict nssets are recognised when there is excess of revenue camed over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled revenue
{enly act of invoicing is pending) when there 15 unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractial terms. The
F@BRB@'E“HWEUQFP@@EW@W‘” consideration received from the customers which are referred as “sdvances from customers’
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

The following table provides information about trade receivables and unbilled revenue from contracts with customers:

¥ Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade reccivables 30,583.37 34,542.56
Unbilled revenue 21,572.56 20,433.47

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 20433.47 Lakhs of unbilled revenue as of 1 April 2020 has been reclassified to trade recedvables upon
billing to customers as per payment terms defined in respective agreements, There is no other significant change in the contract balance
during the year ended 31 March 2021,

d) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

¥ Lakhs
Particulars For the vear ended
31 March 2021

Contract price
Adjustments for: 2,19.032.27
Rebates (415.040)
Revenue recognised 2,18,617.27

¢) Applying the practical expedients as given in Ind AS 115:
i} The Company does not expect to have any contraets where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services co the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year, As a consequence, the Company does nol adjust any of the trunsaciion prices for

if) The Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue rezognized
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date.

) The Company has not incurred any ineremental costs of obtaining contracts with a customer and therefore, not recognised an asset for such
capitalised costs.

£) There is no impact on account of adeption of Ind AS 115 by the Company as compared to Ind AS 13,

47  Operating segment
The Company's Board of Directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'). In the opinion of the
management, there is only one reportable segment (“Generation of Electricity™). Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting
is required to be made in the financial statements of the Company. Further, the Company operates only in one geographical sezment which
is India.

Entity wide disclosures
a) Information about products and services
The Company is invelved in the generation and sale of bulk power to Indian Railways and State Power Utilities.

b} Information about geographical areas

The entire sales of the Company are made to customers which are domiciled in India. Also, all the non-current assets of the Company are
located in India.

¢) Information about major customers (from external customers)
Revenue of approximately Rs 19837468299 Lakhs (31 March 2020: 196830.44 Lakhs) are derived from single external customer (Ministry
of Kailways) accounting for more than 10 per cent of total revenue of the Company

48 Certain contracts of the company for construction of power plants with vendors awarded through ICB {International competitive bidding)
which are denominasted in third currency (Le. a currency which is not the functional currency of any of the parties to the contract) are
falling under the purview of guidance provided as per Ind AS 109, ‘Financial instruments® on derivatives and embedded derivatives, NTPC
Limited {Promoter Company) has sought opinion from the Expert Advisory Committee (EAC) constituted by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India on the above matter. On receipt of opinion / clarification from EAC, company will account for such contracis,

49 COVID-19 disclosure

a)  The Company is in the business of generation and sale of electricity which is an essential service as emphasized by MOP, GOL. During the
outhreak of COVID-19, the Company has ensured the availability of its power plants to generate pewer and has continued to supply power
during the period of lockdown. In line with the directions of MOP dated 15 & 16 May 2020, issued in accordance with the annesuncement of
GOlunder the Atmanirbhar Bharat Special Economic and Comprehensive package, to allow a rebate of between 20%-25% on the capacity
charges during the lock down period subject to approval of the Board, an amount of * Bs 4,20 crore has been approved by the Board, to be
allowed during the year 2020-21. Accordingly an amount of Rs 1.91 Crores & Rs 2.24 Crore has been allowed as a rebate to North Bihar
and South Bihar Discoms respectively.,
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Muutes to the finsncial stitenicniy (contineced

b} CERC fsued an order dated 3 April 2020 wherehy it was divected that Late Payniont Surcharge (LPSC) shall apply al a reduced rate of
12% poa. lnsteadd of the normal rate of 18%% poa. on the payments becaming sverdue during the period from 24 Marel 3020 10 30 Jene 2020
to coutain the impact of COVID-1Y9, Further, GO has nmified Electricity (e Payment Siechorge) Rules, 2021 on 22 Feliruars
W2 These rules envisage (hat base rate of LPSC 1o e comsidered as SO0 ape vear ATCLIE, as on | April of the finmcial vear, plus five
pereent, The rate of LIPSC shall be fncreased by 0.5 prrcend tor every momh of delay, provided that the LIFSC shiall nat b mare than i
peecent higher tan the base rate at ans thae,

o Fuorther, voder the Avmanivblar Blarog package, the Company Bas defereal the capucity charges to DISCOMS for the luckdown preriol
for the puner st seheduled oo be pasiable without interest afier the lock down peeiad in three cyual montldy installments, The inpact on
prafit fur the year due to the veduction in LSO rate am! delernient af capacity charges, is not material

di The demand for pover b contiimonsdy inereasing with incecase in economic activitles in the Coanntry, althongh demanmd may et inspacied i
lart term doe o lock downs Dt cortain parts of the conuies . The Manasciment dues nol anticipale any materdal medinm to long-term impact
b the fimsncial positing of the Compans. The Compuny will continge 10 clasely monitor uns waterial chunges 10 the fulure eepavns

cunditions smd take appropriate remedial pesseres as qeeded 1o respund to e Cosid related risks, i any,

Frer anaal w belssll of the Board of Directon

C.ED Direetor Cliairman
Plivee: Nalinagar “ Plage: Flace:

\

Vishal Gurn
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Charterad Accountants
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Partuer
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Chamaria & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Sher Shah Rauza Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-821115,
Mb: 9431028035, 9661606060
E-Mail:chamariasunil@yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To

The Members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of BHARTIYA RAIL
BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31s*March,
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statement give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 2021 and its
Profits, cash flows and the change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters
We draw the attention to the following matters;

» The conveyance of 25567973 acres of freehold land valued at 811.95 Lakhs is still
pending for registration since long although validity period of agreement for sale of
land has expired (refer Note No.2).

e The confirmation of balances and /or statement of accounts in respect of "Other Advances
Capex (GL code 1034106) ,Intial Advance(s) Construction (GL code -1034100) ,Advances
contractors-0 & M (GL Code-1101300) ,Railway Claim recoverable (GL Code - 1100837),
Other claims (GL code - 1100822), GR Clearing/IR Clearing -CAPAX(gl code-5000001)
GR/IR Clearing -0 & M(GL Code 5000002) , SR/IR-=CAPEX (GL Code-5000003) SR/IR
Clearing-0 & M(GL code- 5000004), Payable to Railways (GL Code- 2070824) and
Contractors Control A/C (GL Code-2101100) were not available for our verification. In view
of above , authenticity of such balances remained unverified (refer note no.5, 11 & 19).

e The confirmation of balances under materials lying with the contractors could not be
verified in absence of joint verification statements in this regard.

¢ Prima facie few of the work against which advances were made are still pending for
adjustment since long in absence of the progress report of the respective work. Such
amounts are included in note no. 5 and 11 to the financial statements.

Sher Shah Rauza Road, Sasaram; Rohtas, Bihar-82111 SJH_!E;._‘-“}H%J!‘OZEHEE. 9661606060
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

+ Further as per norms of NGT for utilization of Fly Ash Company has made arrangement for
lifting of Fly Ash with Shree Cements and Dalmia but quantity lifted by them is less than the
guantity mentioned in Letter of Award.

« All amount receivable from Debtors has been shown as less than 6 months in the Balance
sheet but an amount of Rs. 194.30 Crore withheld by Eastern Railways on account of LTA
which is under petition with CERC and as per observation of CAG for the year ending
March, 2020 management had assured that they will make provision for the same if
amount not received by the end of March, 2021 still management has not made such
provision even such disputed amount is not received till the date of signing of report. (Note
No. 7 to the Financial statement)

However, our report is not qualified in respect of the items as commented under the head
of “Emphasis of Matters” as above.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by
the institute of chartered accountant of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013
and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information’s.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report and Shareholder’s information, but
does not include the standalone financial statement and our Auditors Report thereon.

Our Opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our Audit of the standalone financial statement, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the information materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-821115,Mb: 9431028035, 9661606060
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Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements management is responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those boards of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statement.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure-1 a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks
of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, in the Annexure-2 on the directj-:}ns and sub-
directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

nl
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
accounts.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 (As amended);

(e) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June
2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-
section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure-3.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note- 40 to the financial statements;

Il. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as
at 31.03.2021 for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

lIl. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investors and
Education and Protection Fund by the company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For Chamaria & Co. g
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrati

Date: \7 | Sd&\—=-a2 )\
Place: Nabinagar

UDIN:
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ANNEXURE-1 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 315*March, 2021)

1 (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) A major portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management in
accordance with a phased programmed of verification once in two years adopted by the
company. In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the company and the nature of its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. (Except those disclosed in
Note No. 22.)

(c) As informed, the title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company. (Except those disclosed in Note No. 02.)

2 As explained to us, the management during the year has physically verified inventories at
reasonable interval and in respect of stores and spares, there is a perpetual inventory
system and a substantial part of such stock has been verified during the year. However,
stocks in the possession and custody of third parties and stock in transit as at 31st March
2021 have been verified by the management with reference to confirmation or statement of
account or correspondence of third partie$ or subsequent receipt of goods. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed during physical
verification of inventories as compared to book records were not material and the same
have been properly dealt within the books of accounts.

3. According to the information and the explanations given to us, the company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the order are
not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

4, The Company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv)
of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

5, According to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits under
the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant
provisions of the companies Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014as
amended from time to time. No order has been passed with respect to Section 73 to 76, by
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the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any Court or any other tribunal.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the rules made by the central government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of the company's products and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

7 (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added taxr-cess
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities and there are no undisputed dues outstanding as at 31*March, 2021 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of
GST, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
However, according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
entry tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes as per below

table:-
Name of the | Nature of Amount (in | Period to | Forum where case is
statute dues Rs) which the | pending
' amount
relates
Central Board | Service Tax 27,30,485 | FY 2016-17 | Before the
of Indirect Superintendent of
Taxes (Service Central Goods and
Tax) Service Tax Division.
Central Board | Service Tax 43,11,838 | FY 2015-16 | Before the
of Indirect Superintendent of
Taxes (Service Central Goods and
Tax) : Service Tax Division.
Bihar Entry Tax Entry Tax 66,44,836 FY 2016-17 Bihar Commercial Tax
Act Department
Bihar Entry Tax | Entry Tax 55,597,176 | FY2012-13, | Bihar Commercial Tax
Act FY 2015-16, | Department
FY 2016-17 &
FY 2017-18
Bihar Entry Tax VAT 48,27,518 | FY 2015-16 Bihar Commercial Tax
Act Department
8. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to financial institutions. There is no amount of dues to banks, .~1% -

i
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9. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
or debt instruments, According to the information and explanations given to us, the money
raised by the Company by way of term loans have been applied for the purpose for which
they were obtained.

10,  According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
Management and based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and
in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have been informed
that no case of frauds has been committed on or by the Company or by its officers or
employees during the year.

11.  As per notification n no. GSR 463(E) dated Sth June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 is not applicable to the Government
Companies. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

12.  The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

13.  The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 w.r.t. transactions with the related parties, where applicable. Details of the
transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards (Ind AS). (Refer Note No. 39 of the
Financial Statement)

14.  The Company has not made any preferehtial allotment or private allotment of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3
(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

15, The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with him as covered under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

16.  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India, 1934, Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Chamaria & Co. .“”9
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regig;ratia

Sunil Kumar Ehammq SA
Partner
Membership No. u94316}b &

(ot
Date: \ 9| Ty 52"
Place: Nabinagar

UDIN:
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ANNEXURE-2 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 315 March, 2021

Report on the directions under section 143 (5) of Companies Act 2013 applicable from the
year 2020-21 and onwards

Q(1) Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transaction through
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Reply: As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through 1T system. SAP-ERP has been implemented for all the
processes like Financial Accounting (FI), Controlling (CO), Sales and Distribution (SD). Payroll /
Human Capital Management (HCM), Material Management (MM). Commercial billing / Industry
Solution Utilities (ISL)), ete.

Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to us, no
accounting transactions have been processed/carried outside the IT system. Accordingly, there are no
implications on the integrity of the accounts.

Q(2) Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or case of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Reply: Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to
us, there was no restructuring of existing loans or cases of waiver/write off of debts/ loans/interest etc.
made by the lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan,

Q(3) Whether funds (grants/ subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from central/
state agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation.

Reply: Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to
us, no such funds has been granted to/ received by the company during the year.

For Chamaria & Co. -

Chartered Accountants ‘FH
T WRids

Sunil Kumar Chamaria /"“:\J‘\/’W \}‘:‘\

Partner g :

Membership No. 094316 "%%

Date: 8 B =
Place: k ‘._,l\ ‘“-—‘-:lu-"l-}:: \
UDIN: }{

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-821115.Mb: 9431028035, 9661606060
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Chamaria & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE-3 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31%March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”}
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controels, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAlL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or erTor. L
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD. _

m L
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31%*March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Rep—:ﬁ'ting issued by the ICAl

For Chamaria & Co. - ' '
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration-No:

Sunil
Partner
Membership No. 094316

Place: Nabinagar
UDIN:

Sher Shah Hauja Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bibar-821115Mb: 9431028035, 9661606060
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fAw:  Supplementary Audit under Section 143(6) of Companies Act,2013 on the financial statements
of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (BRBCL) for the year ended 31 March 2021

AR,

I would like to bring to your kind attention the following important points that emerged during
the course of supplementary audit conducted by this office of the financial statements of BRBCL for the
year 2020-21: .

1. Non-provision of claim recoverable from railway (ECR) in respect of ABT meters (Note 11):
Non-provision of claim of ¥ 474.30 recoverable from railway (ECR) in respect of ABT meters
installed by BRBCL on behalf of ECR, Hajipur which was reimbursable to BRBCL as per PPA.
BRBCL has claimed ¥ 581.09 lakh, out of which ¥ 474.30 lakh is more than three years old. This
expenditure was made before 2019-20 but no amount has been received till date from Railways.
Hence, provision was required in the books of accounts.

Management stated that the amount is recoverable as per PPA and there is no dispute regarding the
same. The amount 1s pending due to reconciliation of claim with the actual meter installed.

2. (a)Refund of excess payment for land acquisition (Note 2: PPE)

Above Note includes payment made in excess of area of land measuring 19.86 acres which was
acquired for BRBCL project, the capitalization value needs downward revision. It was noted that
the committee has been formed by District Administration for calculation, verification, valuation
and refund of excess payment made by BRBCL.

Management has accepted the audit observation and stated that final adjustment in the books shall
be carried out once all the related payments are made by district administration and reconciliatiorn
is effected. It was also assured that suitable disclosure will be made in the Annual Report for the
financial year 2020-21.

(b) Non-receipt of balance money from District administration, Aurangabad for land acquisition
(Note 2: FPE)

Above Note includes an amount of ¥ 476.13 !akh which is the balance of deposit amount of ¥
22403.31 lakh deposited by BRBCL to the account of District administration, Aurangabad for
acquisition of land in respect of BRBCL. Land has already been acquired and compensation has
also been paid. Accordingly, the balance of deposit should have been reduced from the value of

land,
Ph : +91-651-2482184, 2480295 MECON Building, Doranda, Ranchi - 834002
FAX : +91-651-2480285 ) ‘ E-mail : pdasteelranchi@cag.gov.in
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Management accepted the audit observation and stated that disbursement of payment for the land
acquisition is still pending with district administration due to disputes. It was also sta ted that final
adjustment in the books shall be carried out once all the related payments are made by district
administration and reconciliation is effected.

(c) Non receipt of interest amount ¥ 887.58 lakh accrued on deposit amount of ¥ 22403.31 lakh
(Note 20: Other Current Financial Liabilities)

An amount of Z 887.58 lakh which is the interest accrued on deposit amount of ¥ 22403.31 lakh
deposited by BRBCL to the District administration, Aurangabad for acquisition of land. Since the
interest is yet to be received from District authorities, the liabilities should not have been reduced
and provision should have been made for doubtful receivable.

Management stated that matter of refund is in active consideration with district administration, and
it is expected that the interest amount will soon be transferred to BRBCL.

3. Non- provision of LTA charges which is withheld by ECR, Hajipur (Note 7 — Trade Receivable)

An amount of T 19430.40 lakh has been withheld by ECR, Hajipur in respect of LTA charges. The
LTA charges has been a matter of dispute since January 2017. CERC vide order dated 05 February
2020 has stated that ECR, Hajipur (petitioner) would be liable to pay the LTA charges and
accordingly it would reimburse the LTA charges to BRBCL proportionately with units declared
COD as per Rule 8 (5) and 8(6) of CERC Sharing Regulation 2010 for LTA charges. Since the
payment has not yet been received from ECR, Hajipur a provision should have been made in the
books of accounts.

Management stated that railway (ECR) has accepted the dues and the payment of energy bill will
be made in instalments very soon.

4. Late Payment Surcharges (LPSC) levied on energy bills raised by BRBCL for LTA charges (Note 7
— Trade Receivable)
BRBCL has charged LPSC @1.50 per cent per month for delay beyond 60 days and 45 days on
energy bills raised for the period August 2017 to March 2019 by BRBCL for LTA charges as per
CERC Tariff Regulation 2014-19 and 2019-24 respectively. Neither the amount has been received
nor the provision for doubtful debts have been made in the financial statement for the FY 2020-21.
Management stated that railway (ECR) has agreed to consider the payment of LPSC due on
account of delayed payment to BRBCL and the matter will be considered after finalization of tariff
by CERC.

The action taken by the maﬂagement on the above issues based on further developments will be
reviewed during the audit of financial statements of the company for FY 2021-22 and deficiencies
noticed, if any, during audit will be commented by audit.

It is also requested that the Management Letter may kindly be placed before the Audit
Committee/Board of Directors.

Haq,

ﬂ@’/
e
(FAVST TERT)
39 fAee (3.89RI.)
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| am to forward herewith the Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of Bhartiya
Rail Bijlee Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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The receipt of this letter may please be acknowledged.
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Sofidential

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited for the year ended
31 March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory
Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the
Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section

143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 17 June
2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit
of the financial statements of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited for the year ended 31 March
2021 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination

of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which

would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under Section

143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

t
Place: Ranchi M”

Date: 11.08.2021 (Faisal Imam)
Principal Director of Audit (Steel)

Ranchi




BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U40102DL2007G0OI170661
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex, 7 Institutional Area, Lodhi Road,

New Delhi-110 003

Tel. no.: 011-24387789 Fax: 011-24360241
Email: amit1106.acs@gmail.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

14™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON 23" September, 2021 at 3.00 P.M

NAME OF THE ATTENDING MEMEBR
(IN BLOCK LETTERS)

*Folio No.

DP ID No.

Client ID No.

No. of shares Held

NAME OF PROXY
(IN BLOCK LETTERS, TO BE FILLED
IF THE PROXY ATTENDS INSTEAD OF THE MEMBER)

I, hereby record my presence at 14" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 23" September, 2021 at 3.00
P.M at NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi- 110 003.

Signature of Member/ Proxy

*Applicable in case of shares held in Physical Form.
NOTES:
1. Only Shareholder(s) present in person or through registered proxy shall be entertained.

2. No gifts or coupons will be distributed at the Annual General Meeting.
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U40102DL2007G0OI170661
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex, 7 Institutional Area, Lodhi Road,

New Delhi-110 003

Tel. no.: 011-24387789 Fax: 011-24360241
Email: amitl 106.acs@gmail.com

FORM OF PROXY
Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
Folio No/ DP ID- Client Id:
Email ID
No. of Shares held
I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:
Or failing him
2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:
Or failing him
3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: ‘

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting
of the company, to be held at NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex,
7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110 003 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Sr. Resolution For Against
No.
Ordinary Business
1. | Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

/4



2. | To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2021-22

3. | To confirm payment of interim dividend and to declare final dividend for
the financial year 2020-21

4. | To appoint a Director in place of Shri Rajesh Kumar Jain (DIN: 08180329),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment

Special Business

5. | To appoint Shri Praveen Saxena (DIN: 07944144), as Director of the
Company

6. | To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2020-21

and authorizing Board to fix remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year
2021-22

Signed this...... day of......... 2021 Revenue

Stamp of
Rs.1/-

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
NOTES:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. The Proxy Form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered.

3. Please put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the
‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in
the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

4. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.




- JyJ

ROUTE MAP

50wy | Sarai Rd 7 Smnuvan |

O mindive # Dyal Singh College Nizamuddin fvm HBLOCK A S
JLN Stadom ~ % BLock Bl “

| ) —, ;

% Sai Baba Mandir ‘| CGO COMPLEX NICAMUDDIN % Hm’;::::d"::é@;l %
TUTIONAL \&Y % fay ) It !
REA .‘ \ BLOCK'D Ky WBLock 8 3

\ \ i a
| \ & G
PRAGAT| 'VIHAR— BLOCK\E =" Baay | ¢
| -» ¢ WALoCK T
I\ » Scope - %5 il
. | WeLock
, % o8
cope Complex - %, % W/ -BLoCK A
Standing Conference 4, |
of Public Enterprises BHOGAL 9, N ISB
1. min drive - work (4 -‘ KAL
JavharelNefru 8LocK) JANGPURA B
Stadium, Delhi | R
’SEA:EORASD JANGPURA .
| BLOCK MBLOCKH e ok o
& .
\ < 8 Lok Shiv Sai Mandir ‘\N ‘ NAGA
: _
« BLOCKIL BLOCKIB
: BLOCK.D () 2
8 & Lapat Nagar Raibway (3~~~ : NA
a npem JANGRURA A\ \
dMarg Garud Marg  Garud Marg TE %
9 ()
3 BLock A g : %ﬁ
NAGAR 5 .
c 8 z L B PHASE'2
5 B JAL VIHAR o
; -
& BLOCKB | | & H
a ]
g a
$ F-BLOCK HARI NAGAR
DEFENCE g1 ook DL 0ckB BLOCK'12 . & Ashram
COLONY elock o) F BLOCK : : Chow
BLOGK 4| g\
KASTURBA A0 |
LOCK B v BLOCK B~ NIKETAN ’
. | NEHRU NAGAR X
& LajpatNager [ 510CK 4 BLOCK : 78\

Y/ /A —



BRBCL

BHARTIYA RAIL
BIJLEE COMPANY LTD.

BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LTD.

(A Joint Venture of NTPC Ltd. & Indian Railways)
CIN : U40102DL200DLPLC170661
Registered Office : NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex,
7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110 003
Ph.: 011-24387889, Fax : 011-24360241,
Email: amitgarg@ntpc.co.in Web: ntpcntecljv.co.in
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